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FHLEBEEARQS

GROUP STRUCTURE
e LB

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
(the “Company” or “New Century”)
L EBEEEBEER AT
(B NCEEAE s ol

and

&

its subsidiaries (the “Group”)

HEAR ([AKHE])

with focus on
Tourism-Related Businesses, Property Investments and Securities Trading

EOERREREBREY MERERESHEE

Tourism-Related Property Securities
Businesses Investments Trading
hix 2 AR BA S 1% MERE EFEE

4

Charter Services

HimiH &R

Cruise Shi
P Hotel Operations

B R R
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

Revenue (HK$ million) WA(BEET)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to AYNSIE DN
owners of the Company EiE&ET/ (B8)
(HKS$ million) (BEB#T)
Equity attributable to RRATEEA
owners of the Company Bl ES
(HK$ million) (BBET)
Eamings/(Loss) per share BREMN/ (BR)
(HK cents) (#40)

*  As adjusted for the effect of share subdivision from which,

2011

g%

172.2

202.6

1,343.1

351

pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 12 July 2007,
each of the then existing issued and unissued share of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company has been
subdivided into four shares of HK$0.0025 each with effect

from 13 July 2007.

* As adjusted for the effect of bonus issue on the basis of one
new share for every twenty shares held on 2 September
2008, which was passed as an ordinary resolution at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 2

September 2008.
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FHLEBEEARLS

KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
EEMBERE

2010 2009 2008 2007
“T-TF ZETAFE  ZZT\E ZTT+E

3294 219.1 3035 2473
1916 (69.7) 1762 1248
1,1532 982.6 1,072.8 741.2
3.32 (1.21) 3.15¢ 255

* DRBROIFAZEEERRE  REX

NAR-_ZET+EFLA+_—_BHEITZ
BERENASE FEBZEBRZER B
—EEZHFHLA T+ =ZHE  AQNBRAK
RERESREECOE T ZIRERE BT
REkZETRG  CRAANBREREE
0.00258 T 2 %1

fOEHMBTARZEZEELRE  REAE

RRABR _ZBZENFAA-_BRETZR
RBFASELLBB2EBRZRE A
EEBNR _ZZENFNA_BEFA
T RR AR A AT M B TT — ARFT AR -

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

RRBHEB ARG
10 09 08 07 Year
1
Earnings/(Loss) per share
FRAEN, (EE)
11 10 09 08 07 Year
Fip

Annual Report 2011 F R

5



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARQS

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFHRES

Dear Valued Shareholders,

I am pleased to announce that profit attributable to owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2011 was
HK$202,625,000 (2010: HK$191,613,000), representing
an increase of 5.7%. Basic earnings per share was HK3.51
cents this year compared with HK3.32 cents last year. The
board of the Company (the “Board”) recommends a final
dividend of HKO.6 cent per share, which is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. Together with the interim dividend
of HKO.3 cent per share, total dividend for the year stands
at HKO.9 cent per share (2010: HKO.6 cent per share).

OVERVIEW

Following the turbulent economic situation in 2009, the
global economy has been gradually reviving since 2010.
That helped regain consumer sentiment and stimulate new
demand for the tourism-related business, especially in the
Asia Pacific region. However, in light of the opening of two
scalable casino hotels in Singapore in early 2010, which
lured away a number of the Group's cruise ship guests, the
Group's performance in its tourism-related business was

affected.

Nevertheless, in view of the reviving global economy, the
property market has been recovering in a rapid pace and
property prices are soaring. This not only allowed the Group
to seize opportunity to unveil the unfavourable factors
brought to us by the competitive business environment
in the tourism industry of Singapore, but also enabled
the Group to achieve record profit. During the year under
review, the Group strategically disposed of a number of
investment properties. All such disposals generated strong
cash inflows and conserved sufficient cash for the Group
to grasp any promising investment opportunities when they

arise.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, New Century remains cautiously optimistic
in the business environment, especially in the equities
markets of Hong Kong and Singapore which have been
demonstrating unrivalled growth momentum since mid-
2009.

In view of the strong property market in Hong Kong and
Singapore at the moment, the Group considers it an
important part of our operations for the coming year, and
will keep looking for investment opportunities of high

quality.

While strategic investment planning is a significant element
of the Group's operations, maintaining a strong and healthy
financial position is equally important. The coming year
will continue to be challenging and our management team
will not waver from its focus on liquidity, cost control and
revenue maximization. We will be pro-active in positioning
our company not only to respond to short-term challenges,
but also to generate long-term returns in an ever-changing

business environment.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Last but not least, | would like to present my heartfelt
thanks to my fellow directors, managers, and all our staff
for their continuous efforts and commitment, and for
contributing to our company. Their dedication has allowed
the Company to overcome all obstacles we encountered
in our daily operations. | hereby promise that we will strive
to deliver sustainable growth and rewarding results to all of

you in the years to come.

Wilson Ng

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2011
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARQS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREtmE ST

RESULTS
For the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group recorded

a consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$202,625,000 (2010: HK$191,613,000),
representing a 5.7% increase compared with 2010. Basic
earnings per share was HK3.51 cents (2010: HK3.32
cents). Revenue for the Group was HK$172,177,000
(2010: HK$329,440,000).

Net asset value rose to approximately HK$1,323,482,000
compared with HK$1,143,233,000 in the last

corresponding year.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends a final dividend of HKO.6 cent
per share, payable to shareholders of the Company whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company
on 5 September 2011. Subject to the approval of the
Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on 30 August 2011, the final dividend
will be paid on 22 September 2011.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled
to be held on Tuesday, 30 August 2011 (“Annual General
Meeting”). For determining the entitlement to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 26
August 2011 to Tuesday, 30 August 2011, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the Annual General Meeting, all transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be
lodged with the Company's branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration

not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 25 August 2011.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARLS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval
of the Company's shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting. The record date for entitlement to the proposed
final dividend is 5 September 2011. For determining the
entitlement to the proposed final dividend, the register
of members of the Company will be closed on Monday,
5 September 2011 and no transfer of shares will be
effected on such date. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all transfers of shares, accompanied by
the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 2 September 2011.

OPERATIONS

Cruise Ship Charter Services

During the year, strong competition in the tourism and
entertainment sector in Singapore continued to impact
the Group's cruise ship charter services of the two cruise

ships named “Leisure World" and “Amusement World" (the
“Cruise Ships").

In 2010, two new scalable casino hotels were opened in
Singapore, causing a precipitous operating environment in
the cruise ship traveling business of the Group. The floating
charge of the Cruise Ships was reduced from 45% to 20%
on net win of slot machines onboard the Cruise Ships
from January 2010. Besides, starting from January 2011,
the Group had no more share of net win of slot machines,
causing a 34.6% decrease in segment revenue from
HK$141,167,000 last year to HK$92,374,000 this year.

EEETREE ST

BIRRHREAFARA Z RERVER
BERg L#E HAFE -BHRAET
HBEKRPBREENZEEHEBER R/ -F
——F A RAHE - &HEE RIS R R H
BEZHEAN  RRFABR T ——F N1
AER(EH O EERERREL - &
R ARABTERBEEABRMHDBES,E
RFE - -RTAKRBBERRHAREZE
B-MAERDBPXHERAERBRELY
BAR-_Z——FAAZH(EHR) TF
M=+ DX ERRBREE 2N
BEFETLHREEESRFARARETT

B o

REXEK

W & R

RAFEE A - 503 R 27 f 4R 84 2 2 B
PUBRFHBTEINAEEE R Leisure
World | X% [ Amusement World | 2 /3 #% $3
W ([Eem ) 2 B HER -

RZF—FF > WA MK KL
IRLGHERB  ERAKE IR IRE

EBIRERB2ZEET - BB 2 FH
KBTE-Z—F— A BH#EHL
AT 2F I 2 45%08 2 E=200% © it
SN BT ——F AR - AEETH
Db AT FRE  EH S BRAS
A F 2141,167,0007% TT R 2 34.6%%F 72
¥ 292,374,000 JT ©
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARQS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREtmE ST

Despite the drop in segment revenue, profit of the segment
rose to HK$56,728,000 for the year, representing a 86.3%
increase compared with HK$30,447,000 in the last financial
year. The increase in segment profit was attributable to: (i)
no subsidies to the operators’ advertising and promotion
expenses during the year (2010: HK$32,570,000); and (ii)
the reduction in fair value losses of the Cruise Ships from
HK$64,174,000 last year to HK$24,297,000 this year.

Hotel Operations

Despite a considerable revival in the global tourism
business, the hotel operations in Batam Resort still operated
at a loss of HK$10,412,000 (2010: HK$4,985,000). During
the year under review, the Group managed to deliver
slight revenue growth from HK$23,227,000 last year to
HK$23,449,000 this year, but failed to turn the loss-making
operation around. Moreover, due to the appreciation of the
Singapore dollar to Indonesian Rupiah at the translation
of liabilities in Singapore dollar at the end of the reporting
period, the segment recorded an exchange loss of
HK$1,983,000 (2010: Exchange gain of HK$3,160,000)

that affected the hotel operations further.

Property Investments

The real estate industry in Hong Kong and Singapore
has rebounded since late 2009 following the revival of
the global economy, and property prices in both cities
have been soaring since then. Taking into consideration
encouraging economic conditions, the Group seized the
opportunity to generate additional cash flow by disposing of
four of its investment properties with tenancy in Hong Kong
and Singapore during the year. They are (i) six retail outlets
at New Mandarin Plaza in Hong Kong; (ii) AIG Building in
Singapore; (iii) three storeys of Nan Fung Industrial Building
in Hong Kong; and (iv) the Sham Shui Po retail shop in
Hong Kong.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARLS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The total gain on the above-mentioned disposals was
HK$65,852,000.

It is worth mentioning that on 20 September 2010, the
Group together with all other owners accepted a tender
for the disposal of the 10-storey Nan Fung Industrial
Building where the Group owned three storeys. The Group
was entitled to HK$92,025,000, being 24.54% of total
consideration for the disposal of the industrial building.
The decision to dispose of the above property showed the
Group's professional insight in property investment, as the
tender has successfully rewarded the Group HK$41 million
more than the prevailing market value for the three storeys
of Nan Fung Industrial Building. For details, please refer to

the Company’s announcement dated 21 September 2010.

In view of the above-mentioned disposals of investment
properties with tenancy, segment revenue decreased
to HK$23,650,000 this year (2010: HK$34,793,000),
representing a drop of 32.09%, whereas the fair value gain
of investment properties also decreased by HK$14,240,000
(2011: HK$90,500,000; 2010: HK$104,740,000).
Nonetheless, the Group still recorded about a 100%
occupancy rate and an average annual rental yield of 3.3%
(2010: 4.7%) for the Group's investment properties.
Simultaneously, gain on disposals of HK$65,852,000 was
recorded (2010: Nil). Profit of the segment increased
by about 30.9%, from HK$133,374,000 last year to
HK$174,605,000 this year.

EEETREE ST

ot & F 18 2 WA 265,852,000

JC ©
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARQS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEST R 5T

Securities Trading

Securities trading has been an important income source
of the Group. Our investment portfolio consists mainly of
blue chips that generate strong profits in Hong Kong and
Singapore. During the year, segment profit dropped to
HK$48,842,000 (2010: HK$129,990,000). The drop was
mainly attributed to the comparatively moderate change of
Hang Seng Index (“HSI") in Hong Kong and Straits Times

Index (“STI") in Singapore this year as stated below:

EBHEEHE

BHEEEARAAEB ZEEZRARR K
EECEREHEEFTERRREBRIM
BEEAREMNEHEZEQR - RAFE
M - oy 365 ARk 4 248,842,000 7T (=

— &4 : 129,990,000/ 7T) ° B A Th

FERRTERAMEEBEERE([EE
5 B ) R T AN 0 e B 3R 5 Bk ([)F Wk B
WIEE ) RAFEREMESORME S PR
g

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2011 2010 Change 2010 2009 Change

—B——F —E-EF —E-2F —EENF
=A=+—-H8 =A=+-—H #8 =A=+—-H =ZA=+-—H 25
HSI  [BAEIEEK 23,528 21,239 2,289 21,239 13,576 7,663
STl /BIREHRIEE 3,106 2,887 219 2,887 1,700 1,187
Due to the appreciation of the Singapore dollar to the Hong AR AERESHRBET N ZERE
Kong dollar at the translation of Singapore securities at the I3 JT 5 & T FHHE - Btk - 5 30 5% F 8%
end of the reporting period, the segment profit recorded an BIE N IK%16,366,0008 0 (& — =

exchange gain of HK$16,366,000 (2010: HK$429,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of 31 March 2011,
guarantees of HK$142,285,000 (2010: HK$210,340,000)

given to banks to secure general credit facilities for certain

the Company had outstanding

subsidiaries. Credit facilities in an aggregate amount of
HK$38,822,000 (2010: HK$90,547,000) had been utilized
by the subsidiaries from such guarantees at the end of the

reporting period.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARLS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As of 31 March 2011, some of the Group's land and
building and investment properties with an aggregate
value of HK$419,947,000 and equity investments with
a carrying value of HK$469,642,000 were pledged to
banks and securities dealers for loan facilities worth
HK$195,514,000 granted to the Group. As of 31 March
2011, HK$88,934,000 of the loan facilities had been

utilized by the Group.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As of 31 March 2011, the Group had net current assets of
HK$987,840,000 and equity attributable to owners of the
Company worth HK$1,343,116,000.

The Group's total indebtedness (representing the aggregate
amount of interest-bearing loans from banks and securities
dealers) was HK$88,934,000 repayable on demand. All
loans were denominated in the Hong Kong dollar and
Singapore dollar and charged at floating interest rates.
It was secured by mortgages over some of the Group's
properties that have an aggregate net book value of
HK$419,947,000 and equity investments with a carrying
value of HK$469,642,000.

The Group’s gearing ratio (total indebtedness divided by
equity attributable to owners of the Company) at the end
of the reporting period was reduced to 0.07 compared with
0.15 as of 31 March 2010.
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FHLEBEEARQS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEET RS T

DISPOSALS
On 27 April 2010, the Group entered into a provisional

sale and purchase agreement with an independent third
party for the disposal of an investment property with
tenancy at Shop Nos. 1A, 1B, 1C, 1F, 1G and 1H of Retail
Portions on the Ground Floor of Commercial Podium,
New Mandarin Plaza, No. 14 Science Museum Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong at the consideration
of HK$115,000,000. The disposal was completed on 30
August 2010. For details, please refer to the Company's
announcement dated 27 April 2010.

On 15 June 2010, the Group entered into an option
agreement with an independent third party under which the
independent third party was granted an option to purchase
an investment property with tenancy at AIG Building, 22
Martin Road, Singapore 239058 at the consideration
of SG$46,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$259,470,000). The option was exercised by the
nominee of the purchaser on 29 June 2010. The disposal
constituted a major transaction of the Company and was
approved by the Company's shareholders at the special
general meeting held on 26 July 2010. The disposal was
completed on 7 September 2010. For details, please refer

to the Company's circular dated 8 July 2010.

On 20 September 2010, the Group together with all other
owners accepted a tender for the disposal of the 10-storey
Nan Fung Industrial Building located at Nos. 15-17, Chong
Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong in a total
consideration of HK$375,000,000. The Group owned three
storeys of Nan Fung Industrial Building and was entitled to
HK$92,025,000, being 24.54% of the total consideration.
The disposal was completed on 16 November 2010. For
details, please refer to the Company’'s announcement dated
21 September 2010.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARLS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 28 October 2010, the Group entered into a provisional
sale and purchase agreement with an independent third
party for the disposal of an investment property with
tenancy at Ground Floor and Mezzanine Floor, Kam
Sha Mansion, No. 212 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Sham
Shui Po, Kowloon, Hong Kong at the consideration of
HK$24,180,000. The disposal was completed on 11
January 2011.

EXPOSURE TO EQUITY PRICE, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
AND INTEREST RATE RISKS

The Group is exposed to risk arising from individual equity
investments classified as trading equity investments. The
Group's investments are listed on the stock exchanges of
Hong Kong and Singapore and are valued at quoted market

prices at the end of the reporting period.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are mainly held
predominately in the Hong Kong dollar and Singapore
dollar. The Group’s borrowings are denominated in the
Hong Kong dollar and Singapore dollar at floating interest
rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's long-term debt
obligations with floating interest rates. In the opinion of the
directors, the Group has no significant interest rate risk. As
the impact from foreign exchange exposure is minimal, no

hedging against foreign currency exposure is necessary.

HUMAN RESOURCES
As of 31 March 2011, the Group had a total of 234 staff.

205 of them were based in Indonesia, 5 in Singapore and
24 in Hong Kong. Remuneration packages for employees
and directors are structured according to market terms as
well as individual performance and experience. Benefits
plans maintained by the Group include mandatory
provident fund scheme, medical insurance, share option
scheme and discretionary bonuses. As of 31 March 2011,
the Group had 436,788,000 outstanding share options

granted to eligible executives and employees of the Group.
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FHLEBEEARQS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance practices at all times. The Board
believes that good corporate governance helps the
Company to safeguard the interests of its shareholders and

to enhance the performance of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Company has adopted the principles and complied

with all the applicable provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code") as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules")
for the year ended 31 March 2011, except for certain
deviations as specified with considered reasons for such

deviations as explained below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the directors of the Company. Having made specific enquiry
of all directors of the Company, all of them confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in

the Model Code during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company. The Board reviews and approves the objectives,
strategies, direction and policies of the Group, the annual
budget, annual and interim results, the management
structure of the Company as well as other significant
policy and financial matters. The Board has delegated the
responsibility of the day-to-day operations of the Group to

the management of the Company.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board currently comprises ten directors (the
"Directors”), seven of them are Executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wilson Ng (Chairman), Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy
Chairman), Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chief Executive Officer),
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer), Ms.
Lilian Ng, Ms. Chen Ka Chee and Mr. Yu Wai Man; and
three of them are Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wong Kwok Tai, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth and
Mr. Ho Yau Ming. The Company has received from each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules. Biographical details of the Directors (including
the relationships among members of the Board) are set out
under the section headed “Directors’ Biographies” on pages

29 to 37 of this annual report.

During the year, four regular board meetings were held and
the attendance of each Director is set out as follows:

Number of
Executive Directors attendance
Mr. Wilson Ng (Chairman) 2/4
Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman) 2/4
Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chief Executive Officer) 2/4
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer) 3/4
Ms. Lilian Ng 2/4
Ms. Chen Ka Chee 2/4
Mr. Yu Wai Man 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai 4/4
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth 4/4
Mr. Ho Yau Ming 4/4
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FHLEBEEARQS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of
the Board should attend the annual general meeting of
the Company and arrange for the chairmen of the audit
and remuneration committees or in the absence of the
chairman of such committees, another member of the
committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to
be available to answer questions at the annual general

meeting.

Owing to another business engagement, Mr. Wilson
Ng, the chairman of the Board, was unable to attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 1
September 2010. In his absence, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, the
chief executive officer of the Company (who is also the
chairman of the remuneration committee) attended and
took the chair of the said annual general meeting and
ensured that proceedings of the meeting were conducted
in order, whereas the chairman of the audit committee
was also present at the meeting. The Company considers
that the members of the Board, the audit committee
and the remuneration committee who attended the said
annual general meeting were already of sufficient calibre
and numbers to address shareholders’ questions at the

meeting.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are distinct and separate. The former is mainly
responsible for the leadership of the Board while the latter

is responsible for the overall performance of the Company.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(continued)

The Board is headed by the Chairman, Mr. Wilson Ng
and the Deputy Chairman, Ms. Sio lon Kuan. They are
responsible for overseeing the Company's strategic
development and setting appropriate polices to manage
risks in pursuit of the Company strategic objectives. The
Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, working with
other Executive Directors, is responsible for managing
the business of the Company. Mr. Wilson Ng is the elder
brother of Mr. Ng Wee Keat. Their respective responsibilities

are clearly established and set out in writing.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-

election.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
are not appointed for a specific term but shall retire from
office by rotation at least once every three years as referred
to the bye-law 87 of the Company where provides that at
each annual general meeting one-third of the directors of
the Company for the time being (or, if their number is not
a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less

than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.

As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company's corporate
governance practices are not less exacting than those in the
Code.
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FHLEBEEARQS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee was established on 12 July
2005 with specific terms of reference. It comprises five
members, including two Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Ng Wee Keat (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
and Mr. Yu Wai Man, and three Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely Mr. Wong Kwok Tai, Mr.
Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company'’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure

for developing policy on such remuneration; and

2. to review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and

objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

During the year, two meetings were held and the

attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Number of
Members attendance
Mr. Ng Wee Keat
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) 1/2
Mr. Yu Wai Man 2/2
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai 2/2
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth 2/2
Mr. Ho Yau Ming 2/2
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Remuneration Committee during the year:

1. to determine the remuneration of the Directors; and

2. to review the remuneration policy of the Group.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for considering the suitability
of an individual to act as a Director, and approving and
terminating the appointment of a Director. The Company
currently does not have a nomination committee. The
Chairman is responsible for identifying suitable candidates
for member of the Board when there is a vacancy or an
additional director is considered necessary. The Chairman
proposes the appointment of such candidates to the Board
for consideration. The Board will review the qualifications of
the relevant candidates for determining the suitability to the
Group on the basis of his or her qualifications, experiences

and background.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the
Company's auditors, Ernst & Young for audit and non-audit
services to the Group, is set out as below:

Services rendered Fee paid/payable

HK$
Audit services 1,400,000
Non-audit services 1,150,000
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FHLEBEEARQS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Kwok Tai
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Kwan Kai Kin,
Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming. One of the Independent
Non-executive Directors possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial

management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

1. to make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditors, to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors, and
any questions of resignation or dismissal of those

auditors;

2. to review and monitor the external auditors’

independence and objectivity;

3. to develop and implement policy on the engagement

of external auditors to supply non-audit services;

4. to monitor integrity of financial statements of the
Company and the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and to review significant

financial reporting judgments contained in them;

5. to review the Group’s financial controls, internal

control and risk management systems;

6. to review the Group's financial and accounting

policies and practices; and

7. to review the external auditors’ management
letters and to ensure the Board will provide a
timely response to the issues raised in the external

auditors’ management letter.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year, three audit committee meetings were held

and the attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Number of

Members attendance
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai

(Chairman of the Audit Committee) 3/3

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth 3/3

Mr. Ho Yau Ming 3/3

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit

Committee during the year:

1. to review with the management and auditors of the
Company the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, to discuss the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2010 and to recommend them to the Board for

approval; and

2. to review with the management and auditors of the
Company the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, to discuss the unaudited
interim financial statements for the six months
ended 30 September 2010 and to recommend

them to the Board for approval.
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FHLEBEEARQS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREGRE

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCOUNTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of annual and interim
reports, price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other

regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2011.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company
about their responsibilities on the financial statements is
set out in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 51

to 53 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and
effective system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness. During the year under review, the Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system including financial, operational and compliance

controls and risk management functions.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their
report and the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company comprise
investment holding and securities trading whilst the
Company only involved in investment holding in the prior
year. The principal activities of its subsidiaries comprise the
provision of cruise ship charter services, hotel operations,
property investments and securities trading. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal

activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2011 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 54 to
201.

An interim dividend of HKO.3 cent per ordinary share was
paid on 30 December 2010. The Directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend of HKO.6 cent per ordinary
share in respect of the year to shareholders on the register
of members on 5 September 2011. This recommendation
has been incorporated in the financial statements as an
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the

statement of financial position.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements, is
set out on page 202. This summary does not form part of

the audited financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Group during the year
are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements,
respectively. Further details of the Group’s investment

properties are set out on pages 203 and 204.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the year are set out in notes 26 and

27 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro

rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities

during the year.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 28 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2011, the Company had reserves available
for distribution of approximately HK$821,190,000, of which
HK$34,602,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for
the year.

Under the laws of Bermuda, the amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company of
approximately HK$352,384,000 as at 31 March 2011, may

be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company in the amount
of approximately HK$162,587,000 as at 31 March 2011
is distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances,

prescribed by Section 54 thereof.
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DIRECTORS £x

The directors of the Company during the year were: ARAFREANZESTNAT ¢
Executive directors: HITESE .

Mr. Wilson Ng (Chairman) HERLEE(EE)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman) EEHBELL(FEE)

Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng

mIBEE A (TTEAEEL)
BB R L (EEAE)
|mAERX LT

Ms. Chen Ka Chee BRA& B2 +
Mr. Yu Wai Man RIEX LA
Independent non-executive directors: BUIEHITESE !
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai BEEFELEE
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth B8 R ST A&
Mr. Ho Yau Ming Al & AR S &

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the HRIFEAAQAFT Z A TABFE7(1)KE R
Company's bye-laws, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Lilian Ng, Mr.  87(2)f§ » &M@ E L L - BEXEL L+ - &
Yu Wai Man and Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth will retire by {8 35 & & B BRER 50 4 15 50 FE Ja iR SR 8
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election F A€ FtEGESE  HHRSFHEERL
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. FASE#EEE -

The Company has received annual confirmations of AAQAFCEEZEFEAE - BBRE L
independence from Mr. Wong Kwok Tai, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin,  FKf{a] KB EFr 3t 2 FE B HHER
Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming, and as at the date of this &= HZERAmE B HDEEKE BB LA

report still considers them to be independent. T
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

(a) Executive Directors

Mr. Wilson Ng Chairman

Aged 39. Mr. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in July 2002 and was appointed as the
chairman of the Company in October 2002. Mr. Ng
is also a director of various members of the Group.
Mr. Ng graduated from Santa Clara University with a
Bachelor's Degree in Chemistry and Psychology. Mr. Ng
has extensive investment experience in Southeast Asia.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ng was primarily
involved in corporate development and business
investment activities. Mr. Ng is a director of Huang
Worldwide Holding Limited, the immediate holding
company of New Century Investment Pacific Limited
(“NCIPL"), which is the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Ng is the elder brother of Ms. Lilian Ng,
Mr. Ng Wee Keat and Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and is
also a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. All of them are
executive directors of the Company. Mr. Ng is a son
of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng who is the settlor of a
discretionary trust of which it holds the entire interest
in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Mr. Ng did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan Deputy Chairman

Aged 44. Ms. Sio joined the Company as an executive
director in October 2002 and was appointed as
the deputy chairman of the Company in October
2004. Ms. Sio is also a director of various members
of the Group. Ms. Sio has over 16 years of
extensive management experience in various fields
including retailing, property investments, tourism
and entertainment. Ms. Sio is a director of Huang
Worldwide Holding Limited, the immediate holding
company of NCIPL, which is the controlling shareholder
of the Company. In addition, Ms. Sio is a director of
NCIPL. Ms. Sio did not hold any directorship in other

listed public companies in the last three years.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Ng Wee Keat Chief Executive Officer and the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 34. Mr. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in January 2003 and was appointed as the
chief executive officer of the Company in April 2004.
Mr. Ng is also a director of various members of the
Group. Mr. Ng graduated from Indiana University with a
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Ng worked in a ship management
company where he was responsible for re-engineering
the Company's structure as well as ensuring the daily
operations of that Company in a smooth and efficient
way. Mr. Ng is a director of Huang Worldwide Holding
Limited, the immediate holding company of NCIPL,
which is the controlling shareholder of the Company.
In addition, Mr. Ng is a director of NCIPL. Mr. Ng is a
younger brother of Mr. Wilson Ng and Ms. Lilian Ng
and an elder brother of Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and
is also a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. All of them are
executive directors of the Company. Mr. Ng is a son
of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng who is the settlor of a
discretionary trust of which it holds the entire interest
in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Mr. Ng did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda Chief Operating Officer

Aged 33. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in June 2003 and was appointed as the
chief operating officer of the Company in October
2004. Ms. Ng is also a director of various members
of the Group. Ms. Ng brings to the Group experience
in the fields of real estate management, human
resource management and retail operations. Ms. Ng
graduated with a Bachelor of Arts Degree majoring
in Telecommunications and a minor in Computer
Science from Indiana University. Ms. Ng is a younger
sister of Mr. Wilson Ng, Ms. Lilian Ng and Mr. Ng Wee
Keat and is also a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. All
of them are executive directors of the Company. Ms.
Ng is a daughter of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng who
is the settlor of a discretionary trust of which it holds
the entire interest in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the
ultimate holding company of the Company. Ms. Ng
did not hold any directorship in other listed public

companies in the last three years.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Lilian Ng

Aged 37. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
director in July 2002. Ms. Ng is also a director of
various members of the Group. Ms. Ng graduated from
San Francisco State University with a Bachelor's Degree
in Business Administration. Ms. Ng has extensive
experience in hotel management. Prior to joining the
Company, Ms. Ng was a finance and operation director
of a conglomerate with businesses in tour industry and
cruise liner management as well as hotel and property
management in Southeast Asia. Ms. Ng is a director
of NCIPL, which is the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Ms. Ng is a younger sister of Mr. Wilson
Ng and the elder sister of Mr. Ng Wee Keat and Ms.
Ng Siew Lang, Linda and is also a cousin of Ms. Chen
Ka Chee. All of them are executive directors of the
Company. Ms. Ng is a daughter of Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng who is the settlor of a discretionary trust
of which it holds the entire interest in Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding company of the
Company. Ms. Ng did not hold any directorship in

other listed public companies in the last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Aged 46. Ms. Chen joined the Company as an
executive director in May 2000. Ms. Chen is also a
director of various members of the Group. Ms. Chen
holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree and is an
associate member of the Australian Society of Certified
Practising Accountants. Ms. Chen has over 23 years of
experience in the accounting field, including 4 years
in auditing. Ms. Chen is a cousin of Mr. Wilson Ng,
Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms.
Lilian Ng. All of them are executive directors of the
Company. Ms. Chen is a niece of Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng who is the settlor of a discretionary trust
of which it holds the entire interest in Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding company of the
Company. Ms. Chen did not hold any directorship in

other listed companies in the last three years.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Yu Wai Man Member of the Remuneration
Committee

Aged 46. Mr. Yu joined the Company in August 1997
and was appointed as an executive director of the
Company in October 2004. Mr. Yu is also a director
of various members of the Group. Mr. Yu is a fellow
member of both of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has over 26 years of
experience in the accounting field, including 3 years in
external audit and 2 years in internal audit. Mr. Yu has
over 18 years of financial experience in companies
listed both in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom. Mr.
Yu was an executive director of Beijing Yu Sheng Tang
Pharmaceutical Group Limited from 11 April 2001 to 5
November 2008, which is listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Save as disclosed above, Mr. Yu did not
hold any directorship in other listed public companies

in the last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Kwok Tai Chairman of the Audit Committee
and member of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 72. Mr. Wong joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in May 1999. Mr.
Wong is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Wong
is a Practising Certified Public Accountant and a fellow
member of both of the CPA Australia and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Wong has more than 46 years of financial experience.
Mr. Wong is a director of W. Wong CPA Limited. Mr.
Wong is currently an independent non-executive
director of Beijing Yu Sheng Tang Pharmaceutical
Group Limited, China Power New Energy Development
Company Limited, Takson Holdings Limited and China
Tycoon Beverage Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Sewco International Holdings Limited), all of which
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wong did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last

three years.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors

(continued)

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth Member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee

Aged 64. Mr. Kwan joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in April 2003.
Mr. Kwan is also a member of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Kwan holds
a Bachelor of Applied Science Degree in Civil
Engineering and a Bachelor of Business Administration
Degree with Honours from the University of Toronto
and the University of Windsor respectively. Mr. Kwan
has 8 years of experience in the accounting and
tax auditing fields together with over 30 years of
experience in the real estate business and business
agent. Mr. Kwan did not hold any directorship in other

listed companies in the last three years.

Mr. Ho Yau Ming Member of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee

Aged 60. Mr. Ho joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in April 2003.
Mr. Ho is also a member of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Ho holds a
Master Degree in Finance from University of Leicester
in England and is a fellow member of Institute of
Leadership and Management in United Kingdom. Mr.
Ho had worked in the banking industry for over 27
years in official and senior executive positions including
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited and Dao Heng Bank Limited. Mr. Ho was
an independent non-executive director of Brightoil
Petroleum (Holdings) Limited from 20 October 2004
to 11 July 2008, which is listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
Ho did not hold any directorship in other listed public

companies in the last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, no Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
or its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2011, the interests and short positions of
the directors of the Company in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO")) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed lIssuers (the “Model Code”), were as

follows:
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

FHLEBEEARLS
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EERRORBERG ZERZR
#a (&)
MARFEBRZITA -

Number of ordinary shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FEEERHME - SORERMEE

Directors
Ex
Mr. Wilson Ng

BERLE

Ms. Sio lon Kuan

MERZL

Mr. Ng Wee Keat
REREE

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
BEMLL

Ms. Lilian Ng
BNERL

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Bt

Mr. Yu Wai Man
RIENELE

Directly Through Percentage of the
beneficially controlled Beneficiary Company's issued
owned corporation of a trust Total share capital
pgcl BEDTE BT
EREEES REHRE BErEZZ@EA Bt BRAEZED L
17,850,000 281,320,000 3,455,753,691 3,754,923,691 65.11
(note 2) (note 3)
(Hfit2) (Hfit3)
42,000,000 281,320,000 3,455,753,691 3,779,073,691 65.53
(note 2) (note 3)
(Hi#t2) (Htit3)
30,030,000 281,320,000 3,455,753,691 3,767,103,691 65.32
(note 2) (note 3)
(Hrit2) (H17t3)
26,250,000 281,320,000 3,455,753,691 3,763,323,691 65.26
(note 2) (note 3)
(Hfit2) (Hfit3)
26,250,000 281,320,000 3,455,753,691 3,763,323,691 65.26
(note 2) (note 3)
(Hi#t2) (Htit3)
8,400,000 - - 8,400,000 0.15
3,360,000 - - 3,360,000 0.06
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Long positions in share options of the Company:

EERRORBERO ZERER
# A ()
RARBBIRIEZ TR

Number of share options

Directors directly beneficially owned
= EREREEZEREHE
Mr. Wilson Ng BEERSLE 66,000,000
Ms. Sio lon Kuan mEREAL L 66,000,000
Mr. Ng Wee Keat E=REAELE 63,900,000
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda HEBE XL 53,900,000
Ms. Lilian Ng mAIELE 47,600,000
Ms. Chen Ka Chee PR A% B2 + 37,600,000
Mr. Yu Wai Man RIEXSESE 40,600,000

375,600,000

Notes:

1. As at 31 March 2011, the total number of issued shares of

the Company was 5,766,968,705.

2. 281,320,000 shares were held by New Century (Huang's)
Foundation Limited, a company limited by guarantee being a
charitable institution of public character of which Mr. Wilson
Ng, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang,

Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng are members and members of its

council of management.

3.  3,455,753,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited which is ultimately owned by Huang Group
(BVI) Limited under a discretionary trust of which Mr. Wilson
Ng, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang,

Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng are the discretionary beneficiaries.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any director of the Company, as at 31
March 2011, other than the interests of the directors of the
Company as disclosed above, the following interests of 5%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by

the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Shareholders Notes
IR R Bt
New Century Investment Pacific Limited 2,4
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited 2
Huang Group (BVI) Limited 2,3
Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng 3,4
=RBE A

Mr. Kan Ka Chong, Frederick 3,5
BEX Fitea

FHLEBEEARQE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEERE

EERROREBARD 2ERR
#a (&)

BREXEBEEI EFMERARA
sk H AE I 48 B X B 2 By sk A8 BE AR 1)
BHERBEES LBPEGRPIZEIS2IGRAER
ZREBBORE  ARBEZELET AU ZRE
MAME AN R A R FTZEmBIRE

FERRREMALTRRD R HE
BROZEERKE

MARREMEEFM R ——F
—RAR=T—"H BRLEXMBEAQRAE
E 2RI AEARRFE BEITRAS%,
LA B2 T3 ThiR IR & 75 R ER & 15 01
EI36IGRTELRARNRRART 2 ELM

RARREBRZEFR
Number of  Percentage of the
ordinary  Company’s issued

shares held share capital

EERQTE T

FrEEBEREA BABD
3,455,753,691 59.92
3,455,753,691 59.92
3,455,753,691 59.92
3,880,333,691 67.29
3,455,753,691 59.92
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FHLEBEEARQE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1.

As at 31 March 2011, the total number of issued shares of
the Company was 5,766,968,705.

Huang Group (BVI) Limited is the ultimate holding company
of New Century Investment Pacific Limited. Huang Worldwide
Holding Limited is the immediate holding company of New
Century Investment Pacific Limited. Accordingly, Huang Group
(BVI) Limited and Huang Worldwide Holding Limited were
deemed to be interested in a total of 3,455,753,691 shares.

Huang Group (BVI) Limited is held by Mr. Kan Ka Chong,
Frederick, as the trustee of a discretionary trust, the settlor of

which is Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng.

3,455,753,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited. 281,320,000 shares were held by New
Century (Huang's) Foundation Limited, while 143,260,000
shares were held by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng. Mr. Ng
(Huang) Cheow Leng is one of the members of New Century
(Huang's) Foundation Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng was deemed to be interested in a total of
3,880,333,691 shares. New Century (Huang's) Foundation
Limited is a company limited by guarantee being a charitable

institution of public character.

Mr. Kan Ka Chong, Frederick held 3,455,753,691 shares as
the trustee of the discretionary trust of which Mr. Wilson Ng,
Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda

and Ms. Lilian Ng are the discretionary beneficiaries.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, no
person (other than the directors or chief executive of
the Company) who was recorded in the register of the
Company had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would be required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Further details of
the Scheme are disclosed in note 27 to the financial

statements.
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FHLEBEEARQE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following table discloses the movements in the

Company's share options outstanding during the year:

Number of share options

BREHA

At Granted  Exercised At
Name or category 1 April during during 31 March
of participant 2010 the year the year 2011

RZB-%f RER RER  RZB--F

SRERAAER mA-H By 8 =ZA=t-H
Directors
Es
Mr. Wilson Ng 21,000,000 - - 21,000,000
EERRE

- 45000000 - 45000000
Ms. Sio lon Kuan 21,000,000 - - 21,000,000
FRERL

- 45,000,000 - 45,000,000
Mr. Ng Wee Keat 18,900,000 - - 18,900,000
EEERE

- 45000000 - 45000000
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda 18,900,000 - - 18,900,000
i e

- 35,000,000 - 35,000,000
Ms. Lilian Ng 12,600,000 - - 12,600,000
BAERL

- 35,000,000 - 35,000,000
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fE IR T & ()

FA-ARRFERITEZ B

T

Date of
grant of
share options
ERE
RHAH

27-04-07
“E3tF
ME=++8
21-01-11
—E--F
—Azt-A
27-04-07
“E5+tF
MA-T+H
21-01-11
—E2--F&
—AZf-H
27-04-07
“E5+tF
MA=t++8
21-01-11
—E--f%
—AZt-8
27-04-07
“ERtF
ME-t+H
21-01-11
—E--F
—A=t-H
27-04-07
“ERtF
ME-t+H
21-01-11

Exercise period of
share options

BRE

TR

27-04-07 0 26-04-12

+ENA-1++H

ECR-CFEAZTRH

21-01-11 10 20-01-21
“F——%-F=+-H
2-%--%#-fAZ+AH

27-04-07 to 26-04-12

+tEMAZ++H

“R-CENMACZTRAE

21-01-11 10 20-01-21
ZF-—%-Azt-H
EEC-F-AZTH

27-04-07 to 26-04-12
“EFELENE-ttA

“EEMAZ+AH
21-01-11 10 20-01-21
ZF-—%-Azt-H
E-RC-%-A-tH

27-04-07 t0 26-04-12

tFNA-++tH

ECE-"FNAZTXE

21-01-11 t0 20-01-21
“F-——%-F=+-H
2-F--%#-A=+H

27-04-07 to 26-04-12

tEMAZT+H

“E-"FNAZTXH

21-01-11 10 20-01-21
“F——%-F=t+-H
2-F--%#-fA-+H

) un

Exercise
price of
share options*

BRE

i@
HK$ per share
BRAET

0.2667

0.2100

0.2667

0.2100

0.2667

0.2100

0.2667

0.2100

0.2667

0.2100



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Name or category
of participant

SREMLAER

Directors (continued)
ES ()

Ms. Chen Ka Chee
BRETT

Mr. Yu Wai Man
REXEE

Other employees
Efgg
in aggregate

A
SIVAN

Total

A
=K

Number of share options

EREHR
At Granted  Exercised At
1 April during during 31 March
2010 the year the year 2011
R-B-FF RERA RER  RZB--F
mA-H & it =ZA=t-A
12,600,000 - - 12,600,000
- 25,000,000 - 25,000,000
12,600,000 - - 12,600,000
- 28,000,000 - 28,000,000
117,600,000 258,000,000 - 375,600,000
18,060,000 - - 18,060,000
- 44,808,000 (1,680,000) 43,128,000
18,060,000 44,808,000  (1,680,000) 61,188,000
135,660,000 302,808,000  (1,680,000) 436,788,000

*  The exercise prices of the share options are subject to

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company's share capital.

**  The weighted average closing price of the Company's shares

immediately before the exercise date of share options was

HK$0.270 per share. The closing price of the Company's

shares immediately before the date on which the options

were granted during the year was HK$0.224 per share.

FHLEBEEARLE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEERE
BREtE (&)
Date of Exercise
grant of Exercise period of price of
share options share options  share options*
BhRE BRE BhRE
RHAH s i@
HKS per share
gRER
27-04-07 27-04-07 to 26-04-12 0.2667
“BRLF ZESHENACT4A
MAZt++H EE-"EMAZTAE
21-01-11 21-01-11 10 20-01-21 0.2100
-IF “F--%-A=1-H
—A=t-R EZF--F-A=tH
27-04-07 27-04-07 to 26-04-12 0.2667
It + A2 “ERHEMACT LA
mA=t+A ECT-CFMAZTRA
21-01-11 21-01-11 t0 20-01-21 0.2100
“E—f “E——%-A-t-H
—Azt-8 EZF--F-A-tH
27-04-07 27-04-07 to 26-04-12 0.2667
It + 2 ZERLENAZT+A
MAZT+H ECE-CFMAZTRA
21-01-11 21-01-11 10 20-01-21 0.2100
—F-F “F—F-At-H
—Azt-H EZF-F-AZ+A

* o BRI ZITEE(E T R AR S BT AL
AR B 2 B A IR LI B i T A E o

OORRBEORERBREZETER ZHEA
2 NAE T T E R FAR0.2708 T o F
N ARFRONEEZBRERE ZH

Bl W E A ER0.224 T -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The Directors have estimated the values of the share
options granted during the year, calculated using the

binomial option pricing model as at the date of grant of the

BB R AT 8 (&)
{5 4 POSE T 2 WG (M
Ty B AR T B b0 — T S
BEREH

options:
Number of share options Theoretical value
Grantees granted during the year of share options
AEA FARTEREHE BREZEREE
HK$
T
Mr. Wilson Ng EERLEE 45,000,000 3,166,000
Ms. Sio lon Kuan AR T 45,000,000 3,166,000
Mr. Ng Wee Keat HEGEE 45,000,000 3,166,000
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda o R e 35,000,000 2,463,000
Ms. Lilian Ng EHABELZ T 35,000,000 2,463,000
Ms. Chen Ka Chee PR A% B+ 25,000,000 1,759,000
Mr. Yu Wai Man RIEXSEAE 28,000,000 1,971,000
Other employees e = 44,808,000 2,422,000
302,808,000 20,576,000

The binomial option pricing model is a generally accepted
method of valuing options. The significant assumptions
used in the calculation of the values of the share options

were as follows:

(a) The risk free rate has made reference to the yield
of Exchange Fund Notes (EFN) as at the grant date.
The year of maturity of the EFN being referred is
determined in accordance with the life of the option
("Option’s life").

(b) The annualised volatility of the weekly share prices of
the Company prior to the issuance of share option was
used in the determination of volatility. The constant

volatility throughout the Option's life was 50%.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(c) With reference to the historical dividend vyield, it is
assumed that the annual dividend yield is 3.66%
during the Option's life.

(d) with reference to the historical option exercise
behavior, the grantees will exercise the option at a
trigger price multiple of 1.7 times (executive directors
of the Company) and 1.4 times (other employees of

the Group), respectively.

(e) The staff turnover rate for the executive directors of
the Company and other employees of the Group
would be 4% and 7%, respectively during the Option’s
life.

The measurement dates used in the valuation calculations

were the dates on which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the binomial
model are subject to certain fundamental limitations, due
to the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a
number of assumptions of the expected future performance
input to the model, and certain inherent limitations of the
model itself. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change to
the variables used may materially affect the estimation of

the fair value of an option.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
director or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Directors had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party

during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

In the year under review, the aggregate sales attributable
to the five largest customers accounted for 64% of the
Group's total sales, which includes gain on trading of
securities and fair value gain of securities in aggregate
of HK$20,982,000 for the year. The aggregate sales
attributable to the largest customer accounted for 38% of
the Group's total sales for the year. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 60% of the
total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest

supplier included therein amounted to 26%.

None of the directors of the Company, or any of their
associates or any shareholders of the Company which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company's issued share capital had any beneficial

interest in the suppliers or customers mentioned above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions, which fall within the definition
stipulated in Hong Kong Accounting Standard 24 (“"HKAS
24'") "Related Party Disclosures”, undertaken by the Group
during the year are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements. Certain transactions included in note 32 to the
financial statements also constituted connected transactions
as defined under the Listing Rules which are detailed in the

following paragraphs.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following connected
transactions and the transactions as disclosed in note 32
to the financial statements, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the special
general meeting on 4 September 2006, ACE Properties
Pte. Ltd. ("ACE"), a subsidiary of the Company, was granted
a mortgage loan in the sum of SG$12,500,000 (equivalent
to HK$61,625,000) from a fellow subsidiary of the Group
on 27 September 2006. The mortgage loan advanced from
a fellow subsidiary of the Group bore interest at 4.25% per
annum for the first year, 4.75% per annum for the second
year, and 0.5% per annum above the commercial financing
rate quoted by United Overseas Bank Limited for the third
year and thereafter. The mortgage loan was secured by a
legal mortgage on ACE's investment property with a carrying
amount of SG$44,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$246,975,000) as at 31 March 2010. During the
year, ACE paid interest expenses of HK$1,350,000 for
the mortgage loan. On 7 September 2010, ACE disposed
of the subject investment property and fully repaid the
mortgage loan advanced from a fellow subsidiary of the

Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was

held by the public as at the date of this report.
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AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wilson Ng

Chairman

Hong Kong
24 June 2011
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

Elf ERNST & YOUNG
= ik

NEW CENTURY GROUP HONG KONG LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
New Century Group Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 54 to 201, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31
March 2011, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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2ERRE
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BRMEFEXHNFES4EEZ201 B FH 4L
SEEBERARTERAL REHB
NEl(HERIEEE]) WiReMBmE -
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H B4R & B ik R R A QA R B g R0 &
HEZEZHALFENGEERER HFE
THERER FERREREK FE
RERERALFES RN E b M
TEREER

EENASMBRRARENEE

ERAREFARARBEEASHMASE
A Y E B B S s R M F B QA KR
PI2HBERERBIGCAEVBERE AT
HREMBHRREFELEEMAFAHRER -
NMEBERRHEHIGEAEMBHRERALE
WA ERIZES - AEGEEMBERRIFE
P 7 R RF S8R AR 1 B B BB KSR AR PR -
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARQS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B RET R &

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of

this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of

the consolidated financial statements.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FHELEEEREERQA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B RBETR &

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued) ZEEEE (E)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is Iz - RPITESHBEXZBZE T L
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit HEEH AR MOTFZE RIBHEHER -
opinion.

OPINION =R
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give H MR A ' ZEHEWHEBREERES
N\

a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company BB EHREEREET M A o <A 5
and of the Group as at 31 March 2011, and of the Group's MEBR _—_ZE——F=ZA=+—HHH
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance AN EREH EZ B IFFE & HEMAMIR S
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have & @ WEZBRE B QKM 2 &R

been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure  F 2 &4 °

=

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young RREFTREBAR
Certified Public Accountants HEDEED

18/F, Two International Finance Centre BB

8 Finance Street, Central IR S B A8t

Hong Kong Bl & @028 1818
24 June 2011 —E——FXAZ+REH
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARQS

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

ZFalEER
Year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=-_A=+—HIFE

2011 2010
=2——F —ZT-FF
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000
B &t TH&Ex T
REVENUE A 5 172,177 329,440
Cost of services provided FiT 42 £ AR 75 K AR (40,083) (42,632)
Gross profit EF 132,094 286,808
Other income and gain H b g A R U 25 5 70,101 3,612
Selling and distribution costs HE R EK A (579) (33,187)
Administrative expenses T X (54,710) (32,107)
Foreign exchange differences, net [& i 2 %8 & JF458 26,359 8,474
Other expenses HEMRAZ (2,420) (2,307)
Fair value losses on cruise ships B &5 2 A F (EEEE (24,297) (64,174)
Fair value gains on investment KEMEZ NFEE
properties W == 14 90,500 104,740
Finance costs = N 7 (3,402) (5,789)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R B A 2 A 6 233,646 266,070
Income tax expense Frigii & M 9 (168) (36,746)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EEFEERF 233,478 229,324
Attributable to: AT AL (S -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIE 7 RSN 10 202,625 191,613
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR AR R A = 30,853 37,711
233,478 229,324
EARNINGS PER SHARE ARTEEBER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BREFAE A
EQUITY HOLDERS EBEEsRER
OF THE COMPANY 12
Basic BN HK3.51 cents Bl HK3.32 cents /&1l
Diluted e N/A RE A N/A 778 A

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year
are disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARLS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SFEZEWER

Year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIL&FE

2011 2010
—E——4%F —E-FF
Note HK$'000 HK$' 000
K&t THT FAETT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 7 F E s R 233,478 229,324
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hth 2 m U=
INCOME
Exchange differences on THERINS L T
translation of foreign operations — E 4 HIE X =58 5,145 828
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE REEHAM
INCOME FOR THE YEAR, Z2m|kE
NET OF TAX HBRBE R 5,145 828
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE AEEZME
INCOME FOR THE YEAR W= 4858 238,623 230,152
Attributable to: AT AL EAL :
Owners of the Company KANEHEA A 10 209,346 202,290
Non-controlling interests JE 2 % P% 3R A 2 29,277 27,862
238,623 230,152
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARQS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HFEMBIRRAER
31 March 2011
—E——F=A=+—8H

31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009
—g--% -z-3F —BEAF
=f=+—-H =A=+—H MA—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$ 000
HriF TER FHET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(k=51) (=51)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BFER& 13 158,843 203,268 249,680
Investment properties "EME 14 404,000 733,175 624,250
Prepaid land premiums B (B 15 2,216 2,695 2,582
Deposit paid to acquire property HREEZERRYE
under development M &S 16 - - -
Available-for-sale investments AHEE CIRE 780 780 780
Deferred tax assets RERIEEE - - 11,193
Total non-current assets ERBDEELR 565,839 939,918 888,485
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 965 920 796
Prepaid land premiums AR E 15 605 577 456
Trade receivables, prepayments, JEWE SR - TERHIE -
deposits and other receivables e kA EIKEER 18 18,481 44335 52,357
Equity investments at fair value FERERRATERE
through profit or loss S| BR 2 IR A 19 469,642 422,229 207,395
Due from a related company JE 5 B i X R FRIE 32(b) 2,093 970 -
Bank deposits RITHER 20 32,594 99,974 -
Pledged time deposit BHEBTHFER - - 17,550
Cash and cash equivalents RehBEEZEEY 21 609,073 148,505 276,039
Total current assets MEBEELE 1,133,453 717,510 554,593
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Interest-bearing bank and SHERITR
other borrowings Hfth & 5K 22 88,934 110,547 97,121
Mortgage loan advanced from REAMBRRBNZ
a fellow subsidiary RBENR 23, 32(d) - 3,780 3,305
Trade payables, accruals, e 8 ZERMR
other payables and JEETFIE » H BT
deposits received R kB WES 24 47,792 48,328 48,566
Tax payable RS iR 8,887 13,792 3,747
Due to a related company FEBEE A RIFRIE - - 1,004
Total current liabilities mBEEER 145,613 176,447 153,743
NET CURRENT ASSETS FEBEEE 987,840 541,063 400,850
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRE
LIABILITIES afE 1,553,679 1,480,981 1,289,335
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Mortgage loan advanced from
a fellow subsidiary

FHLEBEEARLS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEMBRRE

31 March 2011

—E——%=RA=+—H

31 March 31 March 1 April

2011 2010 2009

—F—-F ZT-FF ZTTNF

=A=+—-H =H=+—H mA—H

Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
izt TER FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)

(&5351) (RE5)

EFRBEE
REMBARBNZ
ZIBER 23, 32(d) = 53,472 52,610

Loans advanced from non-controlling A& BEHTE QA2

shareholders of the Group's R IR BT
subsidiaries ZEX 32(0) 190,157 238,596 222,727
Deposits received BliES 24 1,550 10,518 9,064
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIERE 25 38,490 35,162 20,143
Total non-current liabilities E BN EE] 230,197 337,748 304,544
Net assets BEESFE 1,323,482 1,143,233 984,791
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners ERARBEEA
of the Company FEfh S
Issued capital BETRA 26 14,417 14,414 14,414
Reserves i 28(a) 1,294,097 1,115,724 948,026
Proposed final dividends B ARHRE 11 34,602 23,061 20,179
1,343,116 1,153,199 982,619
Non-controlling interests FERBRRER (19,634) (9,966) 2,172
Total equity REHEHE 1,323,482 1,143,233 984,791
Wilson Ng Ng Wee Keat
BERR EEH
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
TE T AR,
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARQS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GFEEREEIRE
Year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Share Proposed Non-
premium Retained final controlling Total
account profits ~ dividends Total interests equity
Rt 8 B2 FER &
EEE BH RERE gt REER 3
Note HKS 000 HK§000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Vi3 T TRn TEn TEr TEr TER
At 1 Aprl 2009 HZEENEEA-A 351944 49179 20179 982619 2172 98479
Proftfor the year RERET - 191613 - 91613 3T 2934
Other comprehensive RERENAE
income for he year: Wi
Eichange diferences on fEENE
trangaton of foreign FHEEY
apeations EXZE - - - 06T (9849) 828
Totel comprehensive TEEAE
income for the yer bttt - 191613 -0 g 230152
Finel 2009 diidend BERIZEENE
declared RERE - - 0179 (0179) - (0179
Interim 2010 diidend “5-ZERERE 11 - M531) - (5 - (13
Proposed 2010 final S
duidend 7Ehe 11 - (23081) 23061 - - -
Dividend paid to B -fER
non-contiling shareholder ~~ BEZRE - - - - (40000)  (40000)
Transfer of share opton resene RERIERA
upon the forfeitre AERRERE
oepiyof haeoptons  EEZER - 124 - - - -
A3 Merch 2010 R-E-FE=A=1-R 351,984 576324 23061 1153199 (3966) 1143233
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARLS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FEEREEHERE
Year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HIL&FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARERARSG
Share Share Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued ~ premium  option Contributed translation  Retained final controlling Total
ptl  account  reseve  suplus  reseve  profits  dividends Total interests  equity
BEf Rt BER R EX 8 B2 b2 &
Rs  EER i Bg i B RERE gt RRER g
Notes  HKJ000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKS'000  HKFOOO  HKF'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK§'000
g TErn TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TEn
At 31 March 2010 RoF-FEZf=1-H
and 1 Apil 2010 R-E-TEMA-A 14414 351944 5933 162587 18936 576324 25067 1,153,199 (9.966) 1,143,233
Proft for the year RERER - - - - - 00625 - RSB 083 133478
Other comprehensive TERENRE
income for the year: fia:
Bichange diferences on EE
trangaton of foreign FhEEy
aperations EXZE - - - - 6,721 - - 6721 (1576 545
Total comprehensive FERRE
income for th year et - - - - 6721 20260 - 09346 29277 238603
Find 2010 diidend BBl -F-%F
declred G - - - - - - (306 (3061) - (B3
Iste of shres #1R0 % 3 440 @ - - - - 352 - 152
Fquiysetled shareoption~~~ JLER 580
amangements BRERH 7 - - N5 - - - - 576 - 0576
Interim 2017 dividend JE--F4ERe 11 - - - - - (172%) - (172%) - (17.9)
Proposed fnel 2011 “5--FEE
diidend ke 11 - - - - - (3460) 34602 - - -
Divdend paid to & BR-fizEER
non-contoling shareholder ~ RE 2 & - - - - - - - - (3945 (38945)
At 31 March 2011 HZE-—EZh=1-R AT 354 26418% 162587F  25657F  T2T0TF 34602 1343116 (19634) 1323482

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves *
of HK$1,294,097,000 (2010: HK$1,115,724,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

1,115,724,000/% 7T) °

WERBEREEEA M FNR AR P AL
A1 1#1,294,097,0008 L (— T — T4 ¢
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARQS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ﬁ%iﬁﬁ} ||.§§
Year ended 31 March 2011
HE_T—F=-A=1+—HLFE

2011 2010
—E--f —E-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
it TER FTAET
(Restated)
(& =51)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING BExBeRE
ACTIVITIES RE
Profit before tax: BB & A 233,646 266,070
Adjustments for: BETRIE A
Finance costs BEKAK 7 3,402 5,789
Bank interest income FATH EWA (1,298) (727)
Dividend income REWA (11,722) (7,274)
Gain on disposal of investment HEREMEZ
properties g (65,852) -
Loss on disposal of items of HEME  BERRE
property, plant and equipment BEMESR 20 45
Depreciation nE 13 20,107 24,948
Recognition of prepaid land premiums BREMNME 15 584 535
Fair value gains on equity investments FRBREATEEYE
at fair value through profit ZRERE 2 RTEE
or loss, net Yz 5 (20,982) (122,979)
Fair value gains on investment REWEZATER
properties g 14 (90,500) (104,740)
Impairment of items of property, MmE - BERRERE
plant and equipment ZRE 2,420 2,120
Deficit on revaluation of cruise ships BwEMGEA 13 24,297 64,174
Equity-settled share option expense DEREENEREER 27 20,576 -
114,698 127,961
Increase in inventories FEZEN (45) (124)
Decrease in trade receivables, M B ZERR - BARIE
prepayments, deposits and other Hign &Eﬁﬂl@lﬂlﬁﬁ
receivables 2R 25,854 8,022
Increase in equity investments at fair BRERATEBIERZ
value through profit or loss IRRER & 2 580 (26,431) (91,855)
Movements in balance with a related HEENE A%
company H) & (1,123) (1,974)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, [ERTE 5 8RN - Rt
accruals, other payables and deposits H AR R R
received Blire 28,/ (Fd) (9,504) 1216
Exchange adjustment RN 3,988 (7,907)
Cash generated from operations RELLEEB R 107,437 35,339
Interest received BUYFE 1,298 727
Interest paid BRFE (3,402) (5,789)
Hong Kong profits tax paid 1‘ﬁ&%ﬂ B (21) (108)
Overseas tax paid B8 INEIR (1,861) (464)
Dividends received B8 11,722 7274
Net cash flows from operating activities RELZEBK 2R TEFH 115,173 36,979
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARLS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
%éiﬁ.ﬁ?m%%
Year ended 31 March 2011

TE-——FE=fF=+—HItEE

2011 2010
—E--f —T-ZF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
it TET TAET
(Restated)
(& =51)
Net cash flows from operating activities RELLEBR I REREFE 115,173 36,979
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBZES
ACTIVITIES RE
Purchases of items of property, BENZE BEX
plant and equipment REEE 13 (1,725) (40,497)
Proceeds from disposal of items HENE  WERZHEER
of property, plant and equipment B S IE = 375
Net proceeds from disposal of investment HERE Y
properties FT{S 5 IB 58 485,527 15,500
Decrease in pledged time deposit EEATERER AL - 17,550
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits BITFERZRL / (E0) 67,380 (99,974)
Net cash flows from/(used in) ke (BR)REEEZ
investing activities Rene T8 551,182 (107,046)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REERH RS
ACTIVITIES hE
Proceeds from issue of shares BRI ) FTF 5B 26 352 -
New bank loans FERITER - 40,000
New other borrowings 7 3E H 55X 50,112 -
Repayment of bank loans BEBTE %’K (71,725) (26,574)
Repayment of a mortgage loan BERZAMBATNRMNZ
advanced from a fellow subsidiary RIBEX (57,252) (3,525)
Repayment of a loan advanced from BEMBARZ
a non-controlling shareholder IR AR R
of the subsidiary BRZER (51,060) -
Dividends paid ERAKRE (40,357) (31,710)
Dividends paid to a non-controlling RN R
shareholder BRR R E (38,945) (40,000)
Net cash flows used in financing activities ~BREEEB v HEREFHA (208,875) (61,809)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH BeRELEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ®im/ (RP) FE 457,480 (131,876)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzRER
beginning of year ReEED 148,505 276,039
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEREH  TE 3,088 4,342
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZBER
AT END OF YEAR REEEY 609,073 148,505
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBRESENZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEIM
Cash and bank balances BeRBrIEE 21 163,199 56,843
Non-pledged time deposits with AR RE EmHR
original maturity of less than R=EAZ
three months when acquired BERATHER 21 445,874 91,662
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the FHHARARRFLRERA
statement of financial position and PRty R & &
statement of cash flows BeEEY 609,073 148,505
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARQS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BAFEAR AR
31 March 2011
—2——fF=A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
Notes HK$'000 HK$' 000
ok FE T FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W WRENEE 527 542
Interests in subsidiaries IR NI - £ 17 430,810 618,332
Available-for-sale investments EEZK’E 780 780
Total non-current assets FERBEEMBE 432,117 619,654
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade receivables, prepayments JEWE 5 R - TR RKRIE
and deposits Kig® 18 803 774
Equity investments at fair value BEREREATEE
through profit or loss PIRR 2 IRIERE 19 234,821 -
Bank deposits RITIFR 20 32,594 99,974
Cash and cash equivalents BeENR2EEY 21 490,866 114,704
Total current assets MENE EAEE 759,084 215,452
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Due to subsidiaries FEASH BT /B A R 5R I8 17 328,223 176,115
Interest-bearing other borrowings ~ H b5+ B & 5 22 25,137 -
Accruals FEFTFRIE 24 2,234 1,870
Total current liabilities MENEERRE 355,594 177,985
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 403,490 37,467
Net assets & EFE 835,607 657,121
EQUITY R
Issued capital BT A 26 14,417 14,414
Reserves &1 28(b) 786,588 619,646
Proposed final dividends fet= 0 =R 11 34,602 23,061
Total equity W= 4B RE 835,607 657,121
Wilson Ng Ng Wee Keat
HER =HEH
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
FE TR 48
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

CORPORATE INFORMATION

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
registered office of the Company is located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda.

The principal activities of the Company comprise
investment holding and securities trading whilst the
Company only involved in investment holding in the
prior year. The principal activities of its subsidiaries
comprise the provision of cruise ship charter services,
hotel operations, property investments and securities

trading.

The Company is a subsidiary of New Century
Investment Pacific Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. New Century Investment
Pacific Limited is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Huang Group (BVI) Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. In the opinion
of the directors, Huang Group (BVI) Limited, which is
beneficially and wholly-owned by a discretionary trust,

is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

FHLEBEEARLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R st
31 March 2011
—E——F=A=+—8H

ANAEIEHR
Nt EERTEERAAARER
EAMAKZCBRAF - RAF 2
=% i ¥ = BR 2 7 Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda °

ARBZETBXEHKBREREERRK
BEEE MARRAREFERSE
BREEBREK EMBRARZEE
EGARHBHEERYE  BEL
2 MERERESFESR -

KA A ANew Century Investment
Pacific Limited (R HBE Z # S i
Mz RaE) 2 W E ARG - New
Century Investment Pacific LimitedJ3
Huang Group (BVI) Limited (B %8
BRESTMAI 2 AR 2EES
BEMBAR - KEFCER B —
HeEETEHE A EHA ZHuang
Group (BVI) LimitedJyZNA A 2 fx 4%

28 /NI
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FHELEEEREERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R =B aE
31 March 2011
—E——F=A=+—8H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 fRBLE %

64

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties, cruise ships and equity
investments, which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HK$") and all values are rounded to the

nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

As further explained in note 2.2 below, during the
year, the Group adopted HK Interpretation 5, following
which the Group’s term bank loans were reclassified
in total as current liabilities. This in turn has impacted
on the amount of net current assets presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Further
details about the effect on the financial statements
and the Directors’ assessment of the impact on the
Group's liquidity arising from this change are included
in notes 22 and 35 to the financial statements,

respectively.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

Basis of consolidation from 1 April 20710

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2011. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases. All intra-group balances,
transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from
intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated

on consolidation in full.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-
controlling interest even if that results in a deficit

balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity

transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii)) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as

appropriate.
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FHLEBEEARQS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2011
—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Basis of consolidation prior to 1 April 2010

Certain of the above-mentioned requirements have
been applied on a prospective basis. The following
differences, however, are carried forward in certain

instances from the previous basis of consolidation:

« Losses incurred by the Group were attributed
to the non-controlling interest until the balance
was reduced to nil. Any further excess losses
were attributable to the parent, unless the non-
controlling interest had a binding obligation to
cover these. Losses prior to 1 April 2010 were
not reallocated between non-controlling interest

and the parent shareholders.

«  Upon loss of control, the Group accounted for the
investment retained at its proportionate share of
net asset value at the date control was lost. The
carrying amount of such investment at 1 April

2010 has not been restated.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised

HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's financial

statements.

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 Amendment

HKAS 39 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HKFRS 5 Amendments
included in
Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in
October 2008

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
Amendments to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards - Additional
Exemptions for
First-time Adopters
Amendments to HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment — Group
Cash-settled Share-based

Payment Transactions

Business Combinations

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible
Hedged Items

Distributions of Non-cash
Assets to Owners

Amendments to HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued
Operations - Plan to sell the
controlling interest in a

subsidiary
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FHLEBEEARQS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2011
—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Improvements to HKFRSs  Amendments to a number

2009 of HKFRSs issued in May 2009
HK Interpretation 4 Amendment to HK Interpretation 4
Amendment Leases — Determination

of the Length of Lease Term in
respect of Hong Kong
Land Leases

HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment

on Demand Clause

Other than as further explained below regarding the
impact of HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised),
amendments to HKAS 7 and HKAS 17 included in
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009, HK Interpretation 4
(Revised in December 2009) and HK Interpretation
5, the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has
had no significant financial effect on these financial

statements.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and

revised HKFRSs are as follows:

(a) HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations and
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate

Financial Statements

HKFRS 3 (Revised) introduces a number
of changes in the accounting for business
combinations that affect the initial measurement
of non-controlling interests, the accounting for
transaction costs, the initial recognition and
subsequent measurement of a contingent
consideration and business combinations achieved
in stages. These changes will impact the amount
of goodwill recognised, the reported results in
the period that an acquisition occurs, and future

reported results.

HKAS 27 (Revised) requires that a change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary without loss of
control is accounted for as an equity transaction.
Therefore, such a change will have no impact
on goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss.
Furthermore, the revised standard changes the
accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary
as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary.
Consequential amendments were made to
various standards, including, but not limited to
HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS 12
Income Taxes, HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes
in Foreign Exchange Rates, HKAS 28 Investments
in Associates and HKAS 31 Interests in Joint

Ventures.
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FHLEBEEARQS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2011
—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a) HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations and
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate

Financial Statements (continued)

The changes introduced by these revised
standards are applied prospectively and affect
the accounting of acquisitions, loss of control and
transactions with non-controlling interests after 1

April 2010.

(b) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 issued in May
2009 sets out amendments to a number of
HKFRSs. There are separate transitional provisions
for each standard. While the adoption of some of
the amendments results in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments has had a
significant financial impact on the Group. Details

of the key amendments most applicable to the

Group are as follows:

«  HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Requires
that only expenditures that result in a
recognised asset in the statement of financial

position can be classified as a cash flow from

investing activities.

. HKAS 17 Leases: Removes the specific
guidance on classifying land as a lease. As
a result, leases of land should be classified
as either operating or finance leases in

accordance with the general guidance in

HKAS 17.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) (continued)

Amendment to HK Interpretation 4 Leases —
Determination of the Length of Lease Term in
respect of Hong Kong Land Leases is revised
as a consequence of the amendment to HKAS
17 Leases included in Improvements to HKFRSs
2009. Following this amendment, the scope of
HK Interpretation 4 has been expanded to cover
all land leases, including those classified as
finance leases. As a result, this interpretation is
applicable to all leases of property accounted for
in accordance with HKAS 16, HKAS 17 and HKAS

40.

The Group has reassessed its leases in Hong Kong
and Indonesia, previously classified as operating
leases, upon the adoption of the amendments.
The classification of leases in Indonesia remained
as operating leases. As substantially all the risks
and rewards associated with the leases in Hong
Kong have been transferred to the Group, the
leases in Hong Kong have been reclassified from
operating leases under “prepaid land premiums”
to finance leases under “property, plant and
equipment”. The corresponding amortisation has
also been reclassified to depreciation. The effects

of the above changes are summarised below:
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FHLEBEEARQS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2011
—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

22 ERNEFHERIKE (&)

(b) (continued) (b) (&)
2011 2010
=B——F _—ZT-TF
HK$'000 HK$" 000
THET FET
Consolidated income HE=—H=1+—HIFEZE
statement for the year BIA7 & Wan
ended 31 March
Decrease in amortisation TE AT+ (5 4 8 4
of prepaid land
premiums (332) (332)
Increase in depreciation WMz - WE MR
of property, plant P& 1L N
and equipment 332 332
2011 2010
—E——fF —_E-FF
HK$' 000 HK$ 000
FHET FA&T
Consolidated statement R=ZA=+—H
of financial position HIAR & BT Bk 7 &
at 31 March
Decrease in prepaid TafT B CF5R) R
land premiums, net (12,129) (12,461)
Increase in property, WMz - HE MR
plant and equipment, net CF5a) 1B 12,129 12,461
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

FHLEBEEARLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ¥R R st

31 March 2011

—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

22 ERNEFHERIKE (&)

(b) (continued) (b) (&)
2010 2009
—Z2-Z2F —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$' 000
FHET FET
Consolidated statement RegH—H
of financial position HIA7 & B 7Sk R 2
at 1 April
Decrease in prepaid FERHE CFFE) B
land premiums, net (12,461) (12,793)
Increase in property, W - WE &R
plant and equipment, net CF#E) 12,461 12,793

Due to the retrospective application of the
amendments which has resulted in the
restatement of items in the statement of financial
position, a statement of financial position as at
1 April 2009, and the related notes affected by
the amendments have been presented in these

financial statements.
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FHLEBEEARQS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2011
—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c) HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial

Statements — Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on

Demand Clause

The interpretation requires that a loan that
contains a clause that gives the lender the
unconditional right to call the loan at any time
shall be classified in total by the borrower as
current in the statement of financial position. This
is irrespective of whether a default event has
occurred and notwithstanding any other terms and

maturity stated in the loan agreement.

Prior to the adoption of this interpretation,
the Group's term loans were classified in the
statement of financial position separately as to
the current and non-current liability portions
based on the maturity dates of repayment. Upon
the adoption of the interpretation, the term
loans have been reclassified entirely as current
liabilities. The interpretation has been applied
by the Group retrospectively and comparative
amounts have been restated. In addition, as a
result of this change and as required by HKAS
1 Presentation of Financial Statements, these
financial statements also include a statement of

financial position as at 1 April 2009.

Further details of the loans are disclosed in note

22 to the financial statements.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FHELEEEREERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ¥R R st

31 March 2011

—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND 22ENEFHRRIEE (&)

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c) HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial (c) BAEREESR U FEHLLH S
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of R EBHAAEEHLERERFT
a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on BRI ERIE A )54 ] (48)
Demand Clause (continued)
The above change has had no effect on the TR EBHHEHFEERRRTER
consolidated income statement. The effect on the Z2-HWHR=ZA=Z+—BWEE
consolidated statement of financial position at 31 B ARKOZELMNT -

March is summarised as follows:

At 1 April
2011 2010 2009
RZZETNF
—2-—-fF —E-FF mA—H
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TET FHET FAT
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Increase in current MEET SIRT
interest-bearing bank B H Ath 8 3R
and other borrowings #m 28,982 60,999 70,544
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ~ ¥AEI&E
Decrease in non-current EmB T BIRIT
interest-bearing bank R H 85K
and other borrowings R (28,982) (60,999) (70,544)
There was no impact on the net assets of the AEBNEEFEILRAERXD
Group. R -
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FHLEBEEARQS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2011
—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendment

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKAS 12 Amendments

HKFRS 9
HKAS 24 (Revised)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

76 Annual Report 2011 &3k

Amendment to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards —
Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7 Disclosures
for First-time Adopters '

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of
Fixed Dates for First-time

Adopters *

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —
Transfers of Financial Assets 3

Amendments to HKAS 12
Income Taxes — Deferred
tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets *

Financial Instruments >

Related Party Disclosures 2

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum

Funding Requirement >

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments '
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 which sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs primarily with
a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. The amendments to HKFRS 3 and HKAS 27
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2010, whereas the amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS 34 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011 although there are separate transitional

provisions for each standard.

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2011

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2012

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 3R =B aE
31 March 2011
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23ICEMEEKRER2EBITIE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Further information about those changes that are

expected to significantly affect the Group is as follows:

Amendments to HKAS 12 were issued in December
2010 which introduce a rebuttable presumption
that deferred tax on investment property measured
using the fair value model in HKAS 40 should be
determined on the basis that its carrying amount will
be recovered through sale. The amendments also
require that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets
measured using the revaluation model in HKAS 16
should always be measured on a sale basis. As a result
of the amendments, HK(SIC)-21 Income Taxes —
Recovery of Revalued Non-depreciable Assets, will be
superseded once the amendments become effective.
The Group expects to adopt the Amendments to HKAS
12 retrospectively from 1 April 2012. The Group has
previously provided deferred tax on the fair value
gains on its investment properties assuming that the
carrying amount of these properties will be recovered
through use. The Group expects the adoption of these
amendments will result in changes in the accounting
policy and the Group's deferred tax liabilities and

income tax charges will be reduced respectively.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of
phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on
the basis of both the entity's business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with

the requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to
HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions™)
and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most
of the Additions were carried forward unchanged
from HKAS 39, while changes were made to the
measurement of financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the fair value option
("FVO"). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of
change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable
to changes in credit risk must be presented in other
comprehensive income (“OCI"). The remainder of
the change in fair value is presented in profit or
loss, unless presentation of the fair value change in
respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
However, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts which have been designated under the FVO

are scoped out of the Additions.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23ICEMEEKRERZEBITIE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its
entirety. Before this entire replacement, the guidance
in HKAS 39 on hedge accounting and impairment of
financial assets continues to apply. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2013,

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the
definition of related parties. It also provides for
a partial exemption of related party disclosure to
government-related entities for transactions with the
same government or entities that are controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the same
government. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 24
(Revised) from 1 April 2011 and the comparative

related party disclosures will be amended accordingly.

While the adoption of the revised standard will result
in changes in the accounting policy, the revised
standard is unlikely to have any impact on the related
party disclosures as the Group currently does not have
any significant transactions with government-related

entities.

Improvements to HKFRSs 2070 issued in May 2010
sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 April
2011. There are separate transitional provisions for
each standard. While the adoption of some of the
amendments may result in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments are expected to
have a significant financial impact on the Group. Those
amendments that are expected to have a significant

impact on the Group's policies are as follows:
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

(@

(®)

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies
that the amendments to HKFRS 7, HKAS 32
and HKAS 39 that eliminate the exemption
for contingent consideration do not apply to
contingent consideration that arose from business
combinations whose acquisition dates precede

the application of HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008).

In addition, the amendments limit the
measurement choice of non-controlling interests
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets to components
of non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity's net assets
in the event of liquidation. Other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at

their acquisition date fair value, unless another

measurement basis is required by another HKFRS.

The amendments also added explicit guidance to
clarify the accounting treatment for non-replaced
and voluntarily replaced share-based payment

awards.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Clarifies that an analysis of other comprehensive
income for each component of equity can be
presented either in the statement of changes in

equity or in the notes to the financial statements.
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

(c) HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements: Clarifies that the consequential
amendments from HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008)
made to HKAS 21, HKAS 28 and HKAS 31 shall
be applied prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009 or earlier if
HKAS 27 is applied earlier.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating

policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so

as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company's
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and

the other parties have an interest.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures (continued)

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint
venture parties, the duration of the joint venture
and the basis on which the assets are to be realised
upon its dissolution. The profits and losses from the
joint venture's operations and any distributions of
surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in
proportion to their respective capital contributions,
or in accordance with the terms of the joint venture

agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,

directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not
have unilateral control, but has joint control,

directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral
or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly,
generally not less than 20% of the joint venture's
registered capital and is in a position to exercise

significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or
indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture's
registered capital and has neither joint control of,
nor is in a position to exercise significant influence

over, the joint venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets,
financial assets and investment properties), the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or
cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to

which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant

accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with

the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or

more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the Group;
(i) has an interest in the Group that gives it
significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has

joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(d) the party is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any

individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual

referred to in (d) or (e); or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group, or of

any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual

assets with specific useful lives and depreciation.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the
value of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the cruise ship revaluation reserve. If
the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit,
on an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit
is charged to the income statement. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the income statement
to the extent of the deficit previously charged. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of
the cruise ship revaluation reserve realised in respect
of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits

as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:
Medium-term leasehold land Over the lease
under finance leases terms
Medium-term leasehold Over the remaining
office premises lease terms
in Hong Kong
and hotel properties
in Indonesia
Leasehold improvements Over the remaining
lease terms
Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 33'/,%
equipment
20% to 25%

9% to 10%

Motor vehicles

Cruise ships
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Drydocking costs represent major inspection and
overhaul costs and are included in cruise ships
and depreciated to reflect the consumption of
benefits, which are to be replaced or restored by the

subsequent drydocking generally every two years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated

separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at

least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. These properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of

the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the income

statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income

statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Deposit paid to acquire property under
development

A property under development is a project in which
the Group has an interest either as the developer or
as the ultimate owner of the completed property. An
interest in a property under development was stated
at cost or carrying amount at the date of change of
the intended use of the property, less any impairment

losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other
than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included
in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the income statement so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the

lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease

terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on

the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial investments, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit or

loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash
equivalents, bank deposits, deposits, trade and other
receivables, equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sale investments, and an

amount due from a related company.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:
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31 March 2011
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
This category includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by HKAS 39. Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are carried in the statement of financial position
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
the income statement. These net fair value changes
do not include any dividends on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policy set

out for “Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess
whether the intent to sell them in the near term is
still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade
these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable
future significantly changes, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
The reclassification from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss to loans and receivables or
available-for-sale financial assets depends on the
nature of the assets. This evaluation does not affect
any financial assets designated at fair value through

profit or loss using the fair value option at designation.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance income in the income statement. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the income

statement in other expense.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in unlisted equity securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are
those which are neither classified as held for trading

nor designated at fair value through profit or loss.
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31 March 2011
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment valuation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the income statement in other
income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the income statement and removed
from the available-for-sale investment valuation
reserve. Interest and dividends earned are reported
as interest income and dividend income, respectively
and are recognised in the income statement as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for

“Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such securities are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial
assets whether the ability and intention to sell them
in the near term are still appropriate. When the
Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets and management's intent to do
so significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets
in rare circumstances. Reclassification to loans and
receivables is permitted when the financial assets meet
the definition of loans and receivables and the Group
has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the
foreseeable future or to maturity. The reclassification
to the held-to-maturity category is permitted only when
the entity has the ability and intent to hold until the

maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-
for-sale category, any previous gain or loss on
that asset that has been recognised in equity is
amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life
of the investment using the effective interest rate.
Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the expected cash flows is also amortised over the
remaining life of the asset using the effective interest
rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be
impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is

reclassified to the income statement.
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31 March 2011
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”)
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that

correlate with defaults.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If
the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a

collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any

impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either
directly or through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
income statement. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is

no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance
account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the

recovery is credited to the income statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment

losses on these assets are not reversed.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a

group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of
any principal payment and amortisation) and its
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in income statement, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the

income statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment below its cost. The determination of what
is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement.
"Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the income statement — is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through income statement. Increases in their
fair value after impairment are recognised directly in

other comprehensive income.

FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R Rt

31 March 2011

—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

QAFTEETHEME (&)

EREERME (&)
AR EZ % a8 E
ﬁfﬁ'ﬁﬁHﬁﬁ%EZ%Eﬂ&ﬁ'K%E

B—HERARMEFERERFE
E&E FIRAPA—EKRESR—HKE
BEHEHE

Al i EEE L IRBE KA
ORE X fMzAEe R#HE) BHER
FAFEEMERZER  BAE
RUr e R P RERZEMIRERBE -
eREtbEEBEE L - WEKRE
RAMER °

EORRBAIHEE ZBRARENT
AT BBRERER BEREZAR
FEEEAIERH THREEREK
RNeBEIER|KIRB]AFIEL
HE - TEX] EHABREZRKAR
A -mIEHIeZERAFERK
PR R B B B [ o a0 R A7 A R (E
BiE - REEE GtERKER A R
R AFEEIFEANEZRE  HER
TxéfZErTEJLXHIEWT\%EPﬁE%E’U
BEBE @REMeEERkaE -
I 1 U & %Wﬁﬁwo”*ﬁﬁﬁHﬁﬁﬁ
EZBRBRITAZBREEBR T8

w R EE - ERAFEEERE
‘RIEM SEZREHMbLE2ZEKEF

Annual Report 2011 Fk

99



100

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5 R R EE

31 March 2011
—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognised when:

« the rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired; or

« the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset; or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a “pass-
through” arrangement, and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group

has retained.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the

Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial liabilities at initial

recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus

directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and deposits received, interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, a mortgage loan advanced
from a fellow subsidiary, loans advanced from non-
controlling shareholders of the Group’s subsidiaries

and an amount due to a related company.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on

their classification as follows:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

effective interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in

finance costs in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying

amounts is recognised in the income statement.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement
of financial position if, and only if, there is currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are
traded in active markets is determined by reference
to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations
(bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active
market, the fair value is determined using appropriate
valuation techniques. These techniques include using
recent arm'’s length market transactions; reference to
the current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same; and a discounted cash flow

analysis.

Inventories

Inventories, comprising food and beverage for the
hotel operations, are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-
in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be

incurred to completion and disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and

form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not

restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current
and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries

in which the Group operates.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

« where the deferred tax liability arises from
goodwill or the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised, except:

« where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and

the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(a) cruise ship charter service income, on a time
proportion basis over the terms as set out in the

agreements governing such activities;

(b) slot machine income, on the sharing basis over
the total cash receipts from the slot machines

placed on the cruise ships;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the

lease terms;

(d) income from hotel operations, when the services

are rendered;
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AR5 R R aE

31 March 2011
—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the

financial asset;

(f) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to

receive payment has been established; and

(g) realised fair value gains or losses on securities
trading, on a trade date basis, whilst unrealised
fair value gains or losses, on change in fair value

at the end of the reporting period.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments

("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using the binomial model, further

details of which are given in note 27.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions
(continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised

as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other

performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at

the date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a
new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
is designated as a replacement award on the date that
it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph. All cancellations

of equity-settled transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of

earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
"MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in

connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within
the equity section of the statement of the financial
position, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When the dividends
has been approved by the shareholders and declared,

they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed
and declared. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are

proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences are taken

to the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was

determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period and
their income statement are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the

year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates

for the year.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the

future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms
and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these

properties which are leased out on operating leases.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by the Group. The office
premises located in Hong Kong comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for administrative
purposes. As these portions could be sold separately,
the Group accounts for the portion held to earn rentals

separately as investment properties.

Income tax

The Group is engaged in the cruise ship chartering
business and accordingly may be subject to income
taxes in different jurisdictions depending on the routes
of the cruise ships and the operations of the relevant
companies. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes worldwide,
if any. The Group does not recognise any liability for
income tax based on management's judgement that
the Group is not subject to income taxes of any of the
jurisdictions based on the existing routes of the cruise
ships and the operations of the relevant companies. In
addition, the management obtained indemnity letters
from tenants to confirm that all relevant tax exposure
of the Group’s cruise ships would be borne by the

tenants.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

discussed below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
and cruise ships

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market of similar leases and other contracts.
In the absence of such information, the Group
determines the amount within a range of reasonable
fair value estimates. In making its judgement, the
Group considers information from fair market value by
reference to independent valuations. This conclusion is
supported by independent professional appraisers who
were engaged by the Group during the year to perform
valuations on the Group's investment properties and
cruise ships. As at 31 March 2011, the fair values
of investment properties and cruise ships amounted
to HK$404,000,000 (2010: HK$733,175,000)
and HK$124,800,000 (2010: HK$163,800,000),
respectively, which were obtained by reference to

quoted second hand market prices.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The gross deferred tax
asset relating to recognised tax losses at 31 March
2011 was HK$7,535,000 (2010: HK$7,745,000). The
amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 March 2011
was HK$212,709,000 (2010: HK$189,807,000).
Further details are contained in note 25 to the

financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their businesses and services

and has four reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the cruise ship charter services segment engages
in the provision of chartering services of cruise

ships;

(b) the hotel operations segment engages in the

operation of a hotel property in Indonesia;

(c) the property investments segment invests in
prime office space and commercial shops for its

rental income potential; and
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

(d) the securities trading segment engages in the
trading of marketable securities for short-term

investment purposes.

Management monitors the results of its operating
segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on reportable segment profit/(loss), which
is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax.
The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except
that interest income, finance costs, corporate gains
as well as head office and corporate expenses are

excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a

group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities
and other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group

basis.

There were no intersegment sales and transfers during
the year (2010: Nil).

FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R Rt

31 March 2011

—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

4. REDHER (K)

d) BEFEESBUETEEARER
SEBERRRERS -

BEEE>DMEREKE DRSS -

ERSEEREKTHERREZAKA
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5 R R EE

31 March 2011
—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BREDBER (&)
(continued)
Group
rEE
Cruise ship
charter services Hotel operations ~ Property investments  Securties trading Total
PRRERE i3 HERE #5858 it
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
“§--F “%-%F "§--F “%-%F C§--F “5-FF C§--F “5-5F 5--F “5-5%
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Térn TEr TEr TEr TEr  TEr  TAr  TEn  TEr  TEn
Segment revenue; ABUA
Income from extemal customers RENREPZHA 034 141167 2349 B30T 2350 34T 3704 13025 1TQITT 329440
Other income EfUA - 143 2564 1413 ¥ 1140 - - 2951 26%
Total revenue and ofher income WARERMAAH 90374 141310 26013 24640 24037 35933 32704 130253 175128 332136
Segment result PR 6708 30447 (10412) (4985 74605 133374 48B4 129990 269763 288826
Reconcllton: i
Interest income flEMA 1298 n
Undllocated gains FOENA 6,820 189
Caporete and other unallocated SERLY
BApENSEs FAUAR (40833)  (17883)
Fnance costs BERE (340) (5789
Proft before tax BEAEA 233,646
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Group
rEHE

Segment assets
Recondiltion:

Corporate and other undllocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Reconciltion:

Comporate and other undllocated fiablites

Total liabiltes

Other segment information:
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment of tems of property,
plant and equipment
Fair value gains on investment properties
Falr value losses on cruise ships
charged to the income statement
Fair value gains on equity investments
at fair value

through proft or loss, net

Capita expenditure*

*

MRE

SERARANEEE
gz

yig)-U

SERECADEAR
L

RESHER
TERRES
e 3
RREBEZAE
FENZ ATERNE
Ba/0VEE
BEERERANR
FABERATRENR
LHERELLTEE
he 58

LUS

plant and equipment.

Cruise ship

charter senvices

I5RERE

011
8%
HKS 000
TEr

135,403

12957

14703

24291

2010

I5-%F
HKS 000
THL

192,880

19725

19420

36,79

FHLEBEEARLE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4,

Hotel operations
BEde

011 2010
c§--F C3%F
HKS'000  HK$'000
Tén  TEn
2699 3279
3,09 24719
4611 4192
2420 2120
1590 1046

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,

B ¥R R M5t
31 March 2011
—E——F=A=+—8H

mensiER (&)

Property investments  Securities trading Total
UESE #5858 ait

010 010 000 200 010 2000
“%--% T-%F I%--fF _T-TF Z8--F “3-%C
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS 000
Tén TEr TR TEr  TEn TR

b

21246 752017 46969 426385 1053343 1404077
645949 233351

1699292 1657428

311 12519 = 13 41107 56976
38,703 457219

315810 51419

686 1411 = - 20000 25023

- - - U
(90500) ~ (104740) (90500) ~ (104740)

- - - ST BT

- - (098) (12979 (0%8) (122979

1 3 = - 1591 31872

*OAAXHBEREYE  BERRED
B e
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R aE

31 March 2011
—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
Geographical information

(a) Revenue and other income from external

4.

mensaER (&)

ith E & R

(@) KESNREF ZHAREAM

customers WA

2011 2010
—g——% -—T-=
HK$' 000 HK$ 000
T#ET FET
Hong Kong o 49,475 144,652
Southeast Asia except REds

Hong Kong (TBEEFB) 125,653 187,484
175,128 332,136

The revenue information above is based on the

location of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

F W AERIAEF P R

(b) FEmEEE

2011 2010

—B——F —ZT—FF

HK$’000 HK$" 000

FET TET

(Restated)

(&e=&:7)

Hong Kong EE 422,724 506,160
Southeast Asia except o

Hong Kong (TBEEB) 142,335 432,978

565,059 939,138

The non-current asset information above is based
on the location of assets and excludes financial

instruments.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue of approximately HK$65,456,000 (2010:
HK$107,068,000) and HK$26,918,000 (2010:
HK$34,099,000) were derived from provision of
cruise ship charter services to two major customers,

respectively.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover,
represents cruise ship charter service income, slot
machine income, income from hotel operations, gross
rental income received, receivable from investment
properties and income from securities trading during

the year.

FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R Rt

31 March 2011

—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

4. REDHER (K)

FEEFER

WA 9 Bl #65,456,0007% 5L (=
T —Z 4 107,068,000 70) &
26,918,000 T (=& —Z F :
34,099,000/ 7T) AR B A MG = &
EPREBHBASRE -

5. WA~ Efh AR W ®
WA (TiEARB 2z S 58 B
FRAZBHBERBKA - AT
WA EEEERA  REMES
B R & A BB S B K
AHEE -
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R aE

31 March 2011
—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN

(continued)

An analysis of revenue, other income and gain is as

5. WA~ Hbg A R Wz (&)

B A WA KR 2 AT

follows:
Group
AEH
2011 2010
—_E2——F T —FF
HK$' 000 HK$ 000
F#ET FHET
Revenue A
Cruise ship charter service TR 4w 7H & R 7
income WA 69,246 63,229
Slot machine income A A 23,128 77,938
Income from hotel operations & & 4% 4 Uz A 23,449 23,227
Gross rental income HeW A4z 23,650 34,793
Fair value gains on equity BIEEERREREBERIL
investments at fair value NP EEYERZ K
through profit or loss — held #&& 2 A FEEKZS -
for trading, net JFRE 20,982 122,979
Dividend income from equity #H{EE F A% E B
investments at fair value BaiRAFEE
through profit or loss — held I8k 2 fg R &
for trading i ¥R PN 11,722 7,274
172,177 329,440
Other income Hfm A
Bank interest income RITH BULA 1,298 727
Others H b 2,951 2,885
4,249 3,612
Gain i =
Gain on disposal of HEREMES
investment properties & 65,852 -
70,101 3,612
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBS RMsE

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after

31 March 2011

—E——F=A=+—8H

BR Bt AT 28 A

AEB BB ADE M E MK G

charging/(crediting): A)
Group
EEE
2011 2010
—E——fF —T-TF
Notes HK$' 000 HK$" 000
ks FET FHET
(Restated)
(&&=E=5)
Depreciation e 13 20,107 24,948
Auditors’ remuneration % B BN & 1,400 1,300
Employee benefit expense EERAMAX
(including directors’ (B2
remuneration in note 8): EEME)
Wages and salaries IE&EN#FS 17,096 16,209
Equity-settled share DA EH
option expense EEE A 20,576 -
Pension scheme RIRE T &
contributions R 632 609
Total staff costs BT KA 38,304 16,818
Minimum lease payments T RIEFEE
under operating leases on HEREES
land and buildings TRER 254 233
Amortisation of land premiums b (& 4 35 15 584 535
Foreign exchange FE M =58
differences, net F (26,359) (8,474)
Rental income on KEMEES KA
investment properties REELERX
less direct operating 1,781,000/ 7T
expenses of HK$1,781,000 —E—TF
(2010: HK$1,773,000) 1,773,000 7T (21,869) (33,020)
Loss on disposal of items of LEWE  WE
property, plant and &BIER
equipment EO)/aE:=] 20 45
Impairment of items of Wz WE K&
property, plant and HREEE 2
equipment A 13 2,420 2,120
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FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5 R R aE

31 March 2011
—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERAK
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: RMEKEADHTAT
Group
REE
2011 2010
—E——fF T —TF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FHETT
Interest on bank loans, BRAFANEHEEN
wholly repayable within RITERZFA
five years (Note) (B1at) 1,928 2,861
Interest on a mortgage loan R XM E A A
advanced from a fellow B 2 RS
subsidiary BERF B 1,350 2,903
Interest on securities Eﬁﬁ REZ
margin account facilities REEETS 124 25
3,402 5,789
Note: Based on the maturity term of the loans, the Bist - BIESZWI KD BREAE

interest on bank loans are: wholly repayable within
five years HK$1,338,000 (2010: HK$1,501,000);
and not wholly repayable within five years
HK$590,000 (2010: HK$1,360,000).
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FHELEEEREERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R Rt

31 March 2011

—E——F=A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EENHENVEESTEEMS

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ remuneration

(a) EEsM=

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as

RIE MR R REEREIED
FI6IEATIETE 2 AFEEZE B
AN

follows:
Group
REH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FHET FET
Fees e 360 360
Other emoluments: HEai e
Salaries and allowances e NoERL 7,200 7,200
Bonuses TE4T 733 684
Equity-settled share option VARE 25 45 E ) BB AR 1
expense A 18,154 -
Pension scheme contributions BRIKESFTEIER 397 394
26,484 8,278
26,844 8,638

During the vyear, certain directors were granted
share options, in respect of their services to the
Group, under the share option scheme of the
Company, further details of which are set out in
note 27 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such options which has been recognised in
the income statement over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above directors’

remuneration disclosures.

FR ERHEAKRENER &
TESERRARANERES
SEXBERE E-THBH
R TR 27 - BARER
AP EEERBHRBERE R
mARP - ELEERENRTFE
ERERTHEE mMEAFE
MhHmEPHEIANSREERE
T EEE B IREE -
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FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R aE

31 March 2011
—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

8. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)
(1) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

8. EERTUGREFEENHS
(#)
(@ EEM< (&)
() BUIFHTEF
RERNSTH FBIIFNTE

directors during the year were as follows: FHEEWT
2011 2010
—=2——fF —ET—FF
HK$’000 HK$" 000
THEx FET
Mr. Ho Yau Ming Al R BA5E & 120 120
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth 8 BRI ot A= 120 120
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai EEREE 120 120
360 360

There were no other emoluments payable
to the independent non-executive directors
during the year (2010: Nil).
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
FHELEEEREERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R Rt

31 March 2011

—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

8. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EERTENEBSHFEEMNS
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) (48)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) () EEM = (&)
(ii) Executive directors (i) AITEFE
Equity-settled Pension
Salaries and share option scheme Total
allowances Bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration
DEREEN BihE
HeREH L BREER HE 13 Hewsm
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn

2011 “E--F

Executive directors: HTES:

Mr. Wilson Ng BEELE 1,320 110 3,166 72 4,668

Ms. Sio lon Kuan BEBTT 1320 110 3,166 72 4,668

Mr. Ng Wee Keat BRARE 1,200 100 3,166 65 4,531

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda ~ EBEZT 840 70 2,463 45 3,418

Ms. Lilian Ng BEXERT 840 70 2,463 45 3,418

Ms. Chen Ka Chee RiEHTT 600 75 1,759 34 2,468

Mr. Yu Wai Man REXEE 1,080 198 1,971 64 3313
7,200 733 18,154 397 26,484
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FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R aE

31 March 2011
—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

8. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)

(i) Executive directors (continued)

8. EERTUGREFEENHS
(#)
(@ EEM< (&)

(i) B7TEE (F

Equity-settled Pension
Salaries and share option scheme Total
allowances Bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration
DEREEN BiNe
GeREl T BREER HE L Mews
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
ThL ThER TAT TR ThAT
2010 —E-%E
Executive directors: g%
Mr. Wilson Ng BERRE 1320 110 - 72 1,502
Ms. Sio lon Kuan AEMRL 1320 110 - 72 1,502
Mr. Ng Wee Keat BREALE 1,200 100 - 65 1365
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda ~ EBELZT 840 70 - 45 955
Ms. Lilian Ng BRBLT 840 70 - 45 955
Ms. Chen Ka Chee RSt 600 75 - 34 709
Mr. Yu Wai Man REXEHE 1,080 149 - 61 1,290
7,200 684 - 394 8,278

There was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year.

(b) Five highest paid employees’ emoluments
The five highest paid employees during the year
included five (2010: Five) executive directors,
details of whose remuneration are disclosed in (a)

above.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on
profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the

Group operates.

FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 53R R 5
31 March 2011
—E——%=RA=+—H

9. FrBHt
BEBANERIIARZFERNESTE
B2 G EHE R & M 32 16.5% (—
T—FF :165%) 2 EHEHE - H
30 % 2 FE &R B A B I8 T0 AR R AR
SEEBRERR2RITHEFTH -

2011 2010
=E2——-F _"_T-ZTF
HK$'000 HK$" 000
FET FHET
Group: REE -
Current — Hong Kong KEFE-FE
Charge for the year REEHIEA 3,551 9,236
Overprovision in BEFE
prior years B EE B (7,462) -
Current — Elsewhere REE—Hhib[R
Charge for the year REEHIE 631 1,616
Under/(over)provision BEFEEME
in prior years T/ () 120 (318)
Deferred (note 25) IRIETTE (FfsE25) 3,328 26,212
Total tax charge for the year FATIIEE A% 168 36,746
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FHELEEERERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R aE

31 March 2011
—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

9. INCOME TAX (continued) 9. FTB8H (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit HKAAANBREKRIBLOHE NG Z
before tax at the statutory rates for the countries ECZBERZETHEGTE 2B A
in which the Company and the majority of its HABERAHIBE BERERN X
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense/(credit) STECHEEBR, (E4) 2%
at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the AN B R R (BIAER R) BE R
applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the MR ZEERIT ¢

effective tax rates, are as follows:

Group - 2011
AEE--%--F
Hong Kong Elsewhere* Total
£ Hftp E* At
HK$'000 % HK$'000 Y% HK$'000 Y%
TERL TERL TERL

Profit before tax BBt R 178,528 55,118 233,646
Tax at the statutory tax rate AT REFEZ A 29,457 165 10,098 183 39,555 169
Adjustments in respect of HIARTERE

current tax of previous gHHE

periods GE (7,462) 42 120 02 (7,342) G.1)
Income not subject to tax BARTMA (21,535) (1.1 (10,385) (18.8) (31,920) (13.7)
Expenses not deductible for tax R R/ HEF % 5,587 3.1 35 0.1 5,622 24
Release of deferred tax RLERE

liabilities in respect of the mERD

disposal of investment BERE

properties Af (9,709) (5.4) - - (9,709) (42)
Tax losses not recognised FEROHBER 2,091 1.2 473 09 2,564 1.1
Others £t 988 0.6 410 0.7 1,398 0.7
Tax charge/(credit) at the BRASKEERHEHE

Group's effective rate LHBER/ (%) (583) (0.3) 751 14 168 0.1
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FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R Rt

31 March 2011

—¥-—%=ZA=+—AH

INCOME TAX (continued) 9. FF1EH (&)
Group - 2010
FEE-—T-TF
Hong Kong Elsewhere* Total
B EfiE At
HK$' 000 Y% HK$' 000 % HK$' 000 %
THEL FEL THR
Profit before tax BHATE R 229,704 36,366 266,070
Tax at the statutory tax rate AT EFEZ A 37,901 16.5 6,531 18.0 4443 16.7
Adjustments in respect of 1 DB R
current tax of previous BHENE
periods iERES - - (318) (0.9) (318) .1
Income not subject to tax B ON (3,307) (14) (5,225) (14.4) (8,532) (3.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax e[ F B % 75 - 33 0.1 108 -
Tax losses utilised from GRS
previous periods HBER (110) - ©) - (115) -
Tax losses not recognised AEBNBBER 1291 05 1 - 1292 05
Others Aty (402) (0.2) 281 038 (121) (0.1)
Tax charge at the Group's RASEERREGE
effective rate ZHEER 35,448 15.4 1,298 36 36,746 13.8
*  Elsewhere comprised of Singapore and Indonesia with *  Hisdbl® S FEF K REE - i
statutory tax rates of 17% (2010: 17%) and 10% ZEEMEDSNRITN (ZFE—F
(2010: 10%), respectively. F17% ) F100% (=T —F4F
10%) ©
. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 10. R AR R AEALEF
COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Bt ARRRIBBHREZEE-ZT
Company for the year ended 31 March 2011 includes ——F=ZA=+—BLFELXRA
a profit of HK$197,915,000 (2010: HK$84,537,000) BB ANEGLEEENB2ERMNAE
which has been dealt with in the financial statements 197,915,000 7T (=& —F 4 :
of the Company (note 28(b)). 84,537,000/ 7T) (M zE28(b)) °
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FHELEEEFREERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR R R EE
31 March 2011
—E——%=R=+—H
1. DIVIDENDS 11. 8 E
2011 2010
—2——F _—ZT-ZTF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FET
Interim — HKO.3 cent FHIRE - EREER
(2010: HKO.2 cent) 0.3811
per ordinary share (_ T—TF 0281 17,296 11,531
Proposed final — FEASRKRE
HKO0.6 cent TR E B
(2010: HKO.4 cent) 0.6 11l
per ordinary share ZE-TF : 0.481) 34,602 23,061
51,898 34,592
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to RFEHRKRARBPREAFARAZ
the approval of the Company's shareholders at the REREGBRTZRRBEFKE L
forthcoming annual general meeting. HEE - TAIHEE -
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12.ARAEERREFEARE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE EEREF
COMPANY
The calculation of the basic earnings per share ERERBANDIZBARQAE R
amount is based on the profit for the year attributable I Bx #E #8 N B 1H AN F R & M &
to ordinary equity holders of the Company, and REEEBETEBRZ METFH
the weighted average number of ordinary shares #(5,765,587,883% (=& — T 4 :
of 5,765,587,883 (2010: 5,765,288,705) in issue 5,765,288,705/%) £+ & -

during the year.
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings
per share amounts presented for the years ended 31
March 2011 and 2010 in respect of a dilution as the
Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in

issue during those years.

The calculations of basic earnings per share amounts

are based on:

FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAF5 ¥R R BiIaE
31 March 2011
—E——%=R=+—H
NR2.EXAREBERBRESEARE
HEREBR (&)

RBEZZTE——FR-ZZF—ZFTF=
A=+—BIEHFERATEREEE
PR EREARARFSBIELAE -
ARAEERNZEFEANIL &M
B EEEEN AR -

BRERNBNIIZRIATEEFTE -

2011 2010
—g——F —E-TF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FE T FAET
Earnings BF
Profit attributable to PN/ B = RN
ordinary equity holders Ax A A
of the Company FEAh & A 202,625 191,613
Shares B 12
Weighted average number FEERER
of ordinary shares in issue 2
during the year, used ERZFA
in the basic earnings per BEITE AR
share calculation I 15 25 5,765,587,883 5,765,288,705
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13.9% - MERRKR®E

Group
e
Medium-term
leasehold hotel Land and Furniture,
properties in building in Leasehold fixtures and Motor Cruise
Indonesia Hong Kong  improvements equipment vehicles ships Total
AEAHES g LS BAR-
EENE 1HREF &B RERREK ot il CEl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$' 000
THR TER TER T THT THT T
31 March 2011 ZE--£ZRZt-8
At 31 March 2010 and RZZ-3FZA=+-BEk
at 1 Apil 2010: RZZ-ZEMA-A:
Cost or valuation RAGfEE 25382 19,000 47459 16927 1712 163,800 280,300
Accumulated depreciation ZRHE
and impaiment R (19,502) (2,399) (36,618) (13,667) (4,846) - (717,032)
Net carying amount (restated) B EFE(EE3]) 5,840 16,601 10841 3,260 2,926 163,800 203,268
At 1 Apiil 2010, RZZ-FEMA-A-
net of accumulated depreciation B ZENEREE
and impaiment (restated) LRE(BES) 5,840 16,601 10841 3,260 2926 163,800 203,268
Additions WE - - 256 1,448 21 - 1,725
Disposals e - - - (20) - - (20)
Deficit on revaluation T - - - - - (24,297) (24,297)
Depreciation provided KREEHE
during the year i (1,602) (654) (1,330) (1,197) (621) (14,703) (20,107)
Impairment HE (735) - (1,685) - - - (2,420)
Exchange realignment EHEE 193 - 404 92 5 - 694
At 31 March 2011, RZE--F=f=1-H"
net of accumulated depreciation 1% ZIEAERI(E
and impairment LFE 3,696 15,947 8,486 3,583 2,331 124,800 158,843
At 31 March 2011: R-Z-——%=A=t-R:
Cost or valuation RAZHE 26,534 19,000 49,816 18,906 7984 124,800 247,040
Accumulated depreciation 2ENE
and impaiment REE (22,838) (3,053) (41,330) (15,323) (5,653) - (88,197)
Net carrying amount BEE 3,696 15,947 8,486 3,583 2,331 124,800 158,843
Analysis of cost o valuation: RESHEEAT :
At cost A 26,534 19,000 49,816 18,906 7,984 - 122,240
At 31 March 2011 B-Z2-—%zR=t-A
valuation e - - - - - 124,800 124,800
26,534 19,000 49,816 18,906 7,984 124,800 247,040
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Group (continued)

FHLEBEEARLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13.9% - BERRE (&)

EEEE RS EE

rEHE (&)
Medium-term
leasehold hotel Land and Furniture,
properties in building in Leasehold fivtures and Motor Cruise
Indonesia Hong Kong  improvements equipment vehicles ships Total
DEREHEE gk BENZ Bl
EENE THEET B KERZA al 8% At
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TR TR TERL TR TR TERL
(Restated) (Restated)
(8%3)) (8%3)
31 March 2010 ZE-2EZA=1-8
At T April 2009: RZETNERA-R:
Cost or valuation A EE 20,007 19,000 37,868 12,859 5879 210,600 306,213
Accumulated depreciation 2RNE
and impairment R (13,507) (1,787) (26,556) (10,198) (4,485) - (56,533)
Net carying amount EERE 6,500 17213 11312 2,661 1394 210600 249,680
At 1 Apiil 2009, RIZENERA-B-
net of accumulated depreciation 1% 2IEHERFI(E
and impaiment L3 6,500 17213 1312 2661 1,394 210,600 249,680
Additions WE - - 242 1,113 2,348 36,794 40,497
Disposals e - - - - (420) - (420)
Deficit on revaluation EL - - - - - (64,174) (64,174)
Depreciation provided REFHE
during the year Bk (1,481) (612) (1,953) (1,040) (442) (19.420) (24,948)
Impairment HE (744) - (1376) - - - (2,120)
Eichange realignment EiAE 1,565 - 2616 526 46 - 4753
At 31 March 2010, R-E-F5=f=1-H"
net of accumulated depreciation 1% 2IEHEREE
and impairment LEE 5840 16,601 10,841 3,260 2926 163,800 203,268
At 31 March 2010: W-E-FEZf=1-R:
Cost or valuation KA fEE 2534 19,000 47459 16,927 1772 163,800 280300
Accumulated depreciation B i
and impairment B (19,50) (2,399) (36,618) (13,667) (4,846) - (77,032)
Net carrying amount RETE 5840 16,601 10,841 3,260 2926 163,800 203,268
Analysis of cost or valuation: REGHEAT
At cost A 2534 19,000 47459 16927 7772 - 116,500
At 31 March 2010 %-2-2£=R=1-A
valuation e - - - - - 163,800 163,800
25342 19,000 47459 16927 1172 163,800 280,300
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.9% - - MEKRRKRE(E)

136

(continued)

The Group’s land included in property, plant
and equipment with a net carrying amount of
HK$12,129,000 (2010 (restated): HK$12,461,000) is
situated in Hong Kong and is held under a medium-

term lease.

The net carrying amount of the Group's fixed assets
held under finance leases included in the total
amounts of land and building at 31 March 2011
amounted to HK$12,129,000 (2010 (restated):
HK$12,461,000).

The Group's cruise ships were revalued on 31 March
2011 by Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited, an
independent professionally qualified valuer, on an
open market, existing use basis. A revaluation deficit
of HK$24,297,000 (2010: HK$64,174,000) resulting
from the valuation has been charged to the income

statement.

Had the cruise ships been carried at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
their carrying amounts would have been approximately
HK$124,800,000 (2010: HK$163,800,000).

At 31 March 2011, the land and building in Hong
Kong with a net carrying value of HK$15,947,000
(2010 (restated): HK$16,601,000) were pledged to
secure a loan granted to the Group (notes 22 and
30).
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AEBEBEEME WMERRKEF
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A

RZZTE——F=ZA=+—8 &%
EETEER@MFEPUREREE
EAFHEAEN L RIEFEEIEZ
12,129,000 T (ZE —ZTF (K&
F) © 12,461,000/ 7C) °

AEEBHEN T — —F = A
St HEBIEESERGERD
B A EFGER AR A RRE
BEAGU A AAMEETEMN -4
B EE 2 B 15 E4AH24,297,0007% 7T

ZZE—FF 64,174,000 L) B
W ER R ARR ©

fit] 5% 5 BB 4w 12 E S PR AR RAE T &
MREEEINE MRS ZEREEE
[l 47 /124,800,000 7T (— & — &
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FHLEBEEARLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA 53R R 5
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. 8%

Group

REH
2011 2010
—E——F —_E—ZEF
HK$' 000 HKg 000
FHET FHET
Carrying amount at 1 April REA—B®OEREE 733,175 624,250

Net profit from fair value NEBEFAELEZ

adjustments S &) F R 90,500 104,740
Disposals HE (419,675) (15,500)
Exchange realignment FE 34, 38 B - 19,685
Carrying amount at 31 March A=A =+—H®EE®EE&E 404,000 733,175

The Group's investment properties are held under

medium-term leases and are situated in:

AREEBAFHEEREZIREDE

-

Group
rEE
2011 2010
—=2——fF —_E—ZEF
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
FET TATT
Hong Kong BE 404,000 486,200
Elsewhere H b b & - 246,975
404,000 733,175

The Group's investment properties were revalued
on 31 March 2011 by Knight Frank Petty Limited,
an independent professionally qualified valuer, at
an aggregate balance of HK$404,000,000 (2010:
HK$733,175,000) on an open market, existing use

basis.

REBZREMERBILEESE
& i {8 B 21 57 81 51 BB 1T B IR A 7%
R-ZZTE——F=ZA=1+—HRER
BRBUAFMEER&ESH AE K
404,000,000 7T (=& — T F -
733,175,000/ 7T) °
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. 12 &Y 2% (48)

138

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of
which are included in note 31(a) to the financial

statements.

Certain of the Group's investment properties located
in Hong Kong with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$404,000,000 (2010: HK$441,000,000) at 31
March 2011 have been pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group as further detailed in
notes 22 and 30.

In the prior year, the Group's investment property
located in Singapore with a carrying value of
HK$246,975,000 at 31 March 2010 was pledged
to secure a mortgage loan advanced from a fellow
subsidiary (note 23). The property was disposed of
during the year.

Further details of the Group's investment properties

are included on pages 203 and 204.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA 5 Rk R B o
15. PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS 15. FA{F B
Group
REH
2011 2010
—E——F —E—ZF
HK$' 000 HKg 000
FHET FHET
(Restated)
(&E5))
Carrying amount at 1 April RIEOA—BZREE
(restated) (&&E7) 3,272 3,038
Recognised during the year — AN [E#ER
(restated) (&) (584) (535)
Exchange realignment PE 3,38 B 133 769
Carrying amount at 31 March W= A=+—HZEHEE
(restated) (FeE5)) 2,821 3,272
Current portion BB (605) (577)
Non-current portion IEMEN I 2,216 2,695
The leasehold land is situated in Indonesia and is held HE+TEZREE  BARERESE

under a medium-term lease. FERFR -
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16. DEPOSIT PAID TO ACQUIRE PROPERTY UNDER

6. MBERRFMWEMIAAH

DEVELOPMENT nE
Group
REE
2011 2010
—_E2——F T —FF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
TET THET
At cost B ME = 47,400
Provision for impairment B B - (47,400)
At end of year F 4R - _

In prior years, the Group acquired the entire issued
shares of a company which had paid a deposit of
Malaysian Ringgit (“RM") 20,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$47,400,000) to acquire a property
situated in Malaysia. The amount of the deposit paid
was accounted for as the cost of the property under
development, which was stated at cost less any
provision for impairment. In prior years, an impairment
provision against the carrying value of the property
under development of RM20,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$47,400,000) was provided by the
directors of the Company in light of the then market

conditions.

The Group has claimed for the refund of the deposit
of RM20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$47,400,000) from the developer of this property
through legal proceedings in Malaysia since 2004. On
23 February 2011, the Group withdrew the civil suit
and would not continue to claim for the refund, after
consulting its legal counsel, as the directors are of the
view the successful claim is considered as remote.
The deposit was written-off against the provision for

impairment during the year accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5 ¥R R E
17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. FFE B A =) > 3%
Company
NN
2011 2010
—®——F -z -TF
HK$' 000 HKg 000
FERT FAT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETIRD - R AE 1 1
Due from subsidiaries g EENGIE | 541,911 854,871
541,912 854,872
Less: Provision for impairment & : J& (B # & (111,102) (236,540)
430,810 618,332
Due to subsidiaries FEATHT & A R FRIE (328,223) (176,115)
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, FEUL K BB A R I I 2 B
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. Ko 3 B TE R K H o AN B R A
Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- RIBIW BB 2B NARBERE
free and repayable on demand. iE ©
The movements in provision for impairment of FE U Y BB A B) FRIE 2 (B B R E)
amounts due from subsidiaries are as follows: LU
Company
AAT
2011 2010
—®——F -z -TF
HK$' 000 HKg 000
FExT FAT
At 1 April REA—A 236,540 327,051
Impairment losses reversed B ¥ [0 B (& &5 18 (125,438) (90,511)
111,102 236,540

Annual Report 2011 £ 141



142

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARQS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R ML

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17.

The above provision for impairment of amounts due
from subsidiaries represents a provision for individually
impaired receivables. The individually impaired
receivables relate to the Company’'s subsidiaries that
were in financial difficulties. The Company does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances. All amounts due from subsidiaries are

not past due.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of Nominal value

incorporation of issued
Name and operations share capital
aF i A% 32 2 #1T
£ RZE BRA2EHE
Capplus Investments Limited British Virgin US$1
Islands (“BVI") 1%

HERIHS

([EBRULES])
Century Rich Investments Limited BVI US$1
RBEREEE 15670
Jackston Maritime Limited BVI US$10,000

HBREALMS 10,000 7T

Queenston Maritime Limited BVI US$10,000
RERZHES 10,0003 7T
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Percentage of
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FEBENL
BB TEXB
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—B-—-f —T-THF
100 100 Securities
trading

BHEE

60 - Securities
trading

60 60 Cruise ship
investment

BRiE

60 60 Cruise ship
investment
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FHLEBEEARLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS SR B
17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17.Fi{EMIB A B 2 fE xS (&)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWMBEARFHEET - (&)
(continued)
Place of Nominal value Percentage of
incorporation of issued equity attributable Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Group activities
at i A AL B#T EEBEES
a8 REBE®H REAZEE EEAAL TEXHR
2011 2010

—g--£ ~3-%3%

New Century Maritime Limited BVI US$10,000 60 60 Investment
EERAES 10,000% 7T holding and

securities

trading

REFRR

Gaintech Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
MEREBERRA BB 28T investment
NERE

Jet Top Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
UEERBRAT BB 2B investment
NERE

Jet Victory Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
URERBERAT 00 2B investment
NERE

New Century Properties Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
Investments Limited e 28T investment
MUEENEREBRDA NERE
Senic Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property
BHNREBERRAA s 28T investment
NERE
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17.FiitMiB AR 2 s (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWMBERARFEET - (8)

(continued)

Place of

Nominal value

Percentage of

incorporation of issued equity attributable Principal
Name and operations share capital to the Group activities
&t A AL 2R rEEERL
=L k& R 2 EE EREIL TEEK
2011 2010
—B-—-f —ZT-IZF
Wise Century Investments Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Property
Limited N 17T investment
EHRERRAT MERE
P. T. Horizon Bandar Bahru*/* Indonesia US$2,200,000 50 50 Hotel
EfE 2,200,000 T operations
BELE
ACE Properties Pte. Ltd. Singapore SG$1 60 60 Property
03K 1R TT investment
MERE

* FRABWIHFABBLKEEANESM
skErnst & Young global networkz H
TGP AR -

* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

O EARAREYHZEERARZEESE
mAHETEEGE B Z&8 %8
RAFIEN B R A o

*  This joint venture is classified as a subsidiary because
the Group has unilateral control over its board of
directors.

Bk Capplus Investments Limited%h + LA
FRRAEFZEMERARIYBEAR M
EHEA -

Except for Capplus Investments Limited, all of the
above principal subsidiaries are indirectly held by the
Company.

EXITNEER R AEBANE
EXREAEAFZEXNGAKEFE
EXE2EMO2ARFMBAR - &
ERA W HEAMKERFZF
B RiEEBARITE -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,

FHLEBEEARLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EEEE RS EE

18. ENE SR » FEIFIE - %

DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES ENEMEWER
Group Company
TEE AQFE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—®-—-& -—T-TF =—B-——-F _“T-ITF
HK$'000 HK$" 000 HK$'000 HK$" 000
FE T TET FET TETT
Trade receivables FEUWE B ERFK 11,258 33,845 54 -
Impairment B (24) (23) - -
11,234 33,822 54 -
Prepayments TR FRIE 2,002 2,346 737 678
Deposits and other 24 K H b
receivables JE W BR 3Kk 5,245 8,167 12 96
18,481 44,335 803 774

The Group’s and Company’s billing terms with
customers are mainly on credit. Invoices are normally
payable within 30 days of issuance, except for certain
well-established customers, where the terms are
extended to 90 days. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group and Company seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior
management. Trade receivables are non-interest-

bearing.

AREBNARNBHEBEZRRZERKE
REBUEERAET - HEEE
ANEHRIOBAZE - EETE
BYREBARZBETHNIERBA T
KEIOH - BE—HEEFHEELR -
ANE B AR TB)IE K8 2 e
WHRRMIABREES - S EEEA
BecTHES A zRE - BKE
BERTITETR -
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Below is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of

impairment, based on the invoice date, which is the

18.FENE SR ~ FEIRIE ~ %
EREMEWRNK (&)

LT REWE SRR RMER
RiIFHEZRH (ARHERE 2B H)

date when the services are rendered. ZERBER DM °
Group Company
REH P NN |
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——5F —E-FF —E——%F —E-FF
HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FETT FHET FETT
Within 1 month — 1@ AR 8,437 12,597 54 -
1 to 2 months —Z M 1E A 1,571 7,253 = —
2 to 3 months mZE=18A 531 4,766 = —
Over 3 months BiE=1E A 695 9,206 - -
11,234 33,822 54 -

The movements in the provision for impairment of

trade receivables are as follows:

EWE SRR ZBEREZS T

Group
AEE
2011 2010
—2——fF —ET-EF
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
THEx FET
At 1 April RO H—H 23 18
Exchange realignment PE 5, 8 B 1
24 23
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,

DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

The above provision for impairment of trade
receivables represents a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables. The individually impaired
trade receivables relate to customers that were in
financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these

balances.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not

FHLEBEEARLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R aE
18. EH&%Z%EE* CEMNRRE ',
Hith FE W BR X (4]

A b & Ue R SRR (B B 8 R 3K M3 BY RR
TE 2 & W RR OB B B o M Bl R E

2 FEWHR FORE B E R B BE 1R B 1%
REZEP AKEBEYERZFTHE

BB I KRR EMmEREE
1) o

RBEZEWE ZRR 2R D

considered to be impaired is as follows: N
Group Company
r5E ¥ NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
“E-—-F —E-ZF —E—-F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THR FET THER TET
Neither past due nor impaired K& B IR K ERE 8,329 6,922 54 -
Less than 1 month past due BEOR—1EA 1,713 11,701 = -
1 to 3 months past due mE—Z=={8A 527 9,875 - -
Over 3 months past due BRBEE=EA 665 5,324 - -
11,234 33,822 54 -
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired R HR UR R VEE B 2 FE W BR B Y
relate to a large number of diversified customers for P ITRNEEER - {BZ%EL,HH
whom there was no recent history of default. S 4 HE /K SR IE B0 8% o
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FHLEBEEARQS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS,
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group and the Company.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
main type of collateral held by the Group as security is
rental deposits received from tenants with fair value of
HK$15,684,000 (2010: HK$23,584,000).

None of the prepayments, deposits and other

receivables is either past due or impaired and there

was no recent history of default among the customers.

19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

18.FENE SR ~ FEIRIE ~ %

TR EAMEWERR (F)

0 BB SR 1R (B 2 F& W AR 3R D B 8
FEAEBELARNAAERITGLEEYZ
BUYBEAE@E RBEBEBAELR K
RAIEERR HBHRZFEEZE
EHEZWESAREYMERBERA
fikRge 2 g e - WBERZSE
MIEL R ERE TEERFREER
BERzEWRSEZHANARERS K
AT ({E1E AE15,684,0008 T (=F
— T4 : 23,584,000/ 0) 2 A%

A RIA -~ 1R K E R AR S
EmBHRE BEEFLOMITE
R FRIAAC B -

19. ZBEFRAFEEIKRZ

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BRERE
Group Company
rEEH b NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
=EB-——F _—ZT—ZETF ZB-——F —_E-FF
HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$ 000 HK$" 000
FET FA&T FER FA&TT
Listed equity HEEM
investments in iR E -
Hong Kong, BmiE
at market value 188,464 316,716 94,232 -
Listed equity N
investments in RERE -
Singapore, BmE
at market value 281,178 105,513 140,589 -
469,642 422,229 234,821 —
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19.

20.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The above equity investments were classified as held
for trading at 31 March 2011 and 2010.

At 31 March 2011, the Group's equity investments
amounting to HK$469,642,000 (2010:
HK$199,312,000) were pledged to secure margin

account facilities granted to the Group (note 30).

In the prior year, certain of the Group’s bank loan
facilities amounting to HK$60,000,000, of which
HK$20,000,000 had been utilised as at the end
of the reporting period, were secured by certain
of the Group’s equity investments amounting to
HK$222,917,000 (2011: Nil) (note 22).

Assuming the portfolio of the Group’s equity
investments remained unchanged, the market value of
the Group's equity investments at the date of approval
of these financial statements was approximately
HK$440,965,000.

BANK DEPOSITS

Bank deposits represent cash placed with banks, with
maturities of more than three months, but less than

twelve months.

As at 31 March 2011, the weighted average interest
rate on these bank deposits is 0.76% per annum
(2010: 0.37%) and the balances with carrying
amounts of HK$30,000,000 (2010: HK$97,400,000)
and HK$2,594,000 (2010: HK$2,574,000) are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States

dollars, respectively.

19.

20.

FHLEBEEARLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EEEE RS EE

EBBERBAFEEIRZ
RERE (&)
MR-T——4#R-_FT—FTF=AH
=+—B ERBEREDSHA

FFEE -

R-_E——FZA=Z+—H &%
B #469,642,0008 L (Z T —F
F :199,312,0008 7T) 2 IR #EZE
EEER UIERTFTAEEZR
FEEFEE (ME30) °

EF  AEERBERRELEHAHE
& TiR1TE B & & #60,000,000
75 7T #F #920,000,000% 7T+ H LA A
%= & A& %0222,917,0008 T (= F
——F:ENETREREERK
R (HFsE22) ©

BEREAEENRERLEEGERT
B REBHRERENTFRE
#E 2 BB EA H440,965,0007%8

JT ©

RITER
RITEREFRERTZRE A
HEHEa=—EAEIR+ @R -

RZT——F=ZA=+—8 %%
IRITERZ NETFHFNESEF0.76
E(ZZT—ZTF:037F) ' #8K
M 18 A&30,000,0008B L (ZF —F
F : 97,400,000/ 7T) 2,594,000
BT (ZZFE—FF : 2,574,000/ 7T)
DRIAE T RIETLBEEFEL -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R ML

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Q1. ERRESEEY

Group Company
rEH b NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—EB——F —_E-FF —E——F —E-FF
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FHET FER FA&T
Cash and bank Re RIRT
balances R e 163,199 56,843 93,347 44,704
Time deposits TE HATF K 445,874 91,662 397,519 70,000
Cash and cash Be kIR
equivalents HEM 609,073 148,505 490,866 114,704

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between eight days
and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest
at the respective short-term time deposit rates. The
bank balances and time deposits are deposited with

creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS
Group

2

Current it ]

Curent portion of REEAER

long-term bank loans,

secured

Long-term bank loans
repayable on demand,

secured (Note)

Other loans, secured

HREH
(BER)

REER
(BER) (Wit

R EH (BER)

Effective contractual
interest rate (%)

RBAHAZMW)

Hong Kong

Interbank offered

rate +1.5% pa. to

Hong Kong

Prime rate - 1.625% p.a.
EE
BREFEHSEER
EER
BEEAZ-160EFS

Hong Kong

Interbank offered

fate +1.5% p.a. to

Hong Kong

Prime rate - 1.625% p.a.
Ei
BREFELISEER
EER
BEEAE-160EFS

Singapore

Interbank offered

fate + 2% p.a. to
Hong Kong

Prime rate + 3% p.a.
Fins
BAEEFEHERS
EER
BEEHZEES

2011
=

Maturity ~ HKS'000

i88

On demand

EERRE

On demand

EEREE

On demand

EExiE

FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBS RMsE

22. 5T ESBITREMMER

2010 (Restated)

R
“3-SF(HE5))

Effective contractual
interest rate (%)

BIRANTE®)

TEn

Hong Kong

Interbank offered

rate + 1% pa. to

Hong Kong

9840 Prime rate - 1.625% pa.
3
ROREREHIEES
E8%
SEEHE-16EES

Hong Kong

Prime rate - 2.7% p.. to

Hong Kong

28,982 Prime rate - 1.625% pa.
RESHE-27EES
B3
RESHE-160E5R

50112 -

88,934

Meturty -~ HKS'000

ElE

On demand

EELEE

On demand

EERER

TiEn

49,548

60999

110,547

2009 (Restated)
ZEENE(EES)

ffective contractual
interest rate (%)
ECERIE())

Hong Kong

Prime rate - 2.7% pa. to
Hong Kong

Prime rate - 1.625% paa.
Bt
REEHE-27EES
E8%

FEEAR-1625EER

Hong Kong
Prime rate - 2.7% pa. to
Hong Kong
Prime rate - 1.625% p.a.

Bt

EENE-16258

I
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On demand

EEXE

20

TEn

25771
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR R R EE
22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 22. st EHRIT R H A (&)
BORROWINGS (continued)
Company
KA HE]
2011 2010
“E--f% _E-%%
Effective contractual Effective contractual
interest rate (%) Maturity  HK$'000 interest rate (%) Maturty — HK$'000
BBREH7E©) U8R TEn ERAHNE() U8R TiEx
Current ik
Other loans, secured ~ ZpEF (5EH) Singapore
Interbank offered
rate + 2% p.a. to
Hong Kong Interbank
offered rate +1.75% p.a. ~ Ondemand 25,137 - - -
# s
ROBEREEER
EEE
RORERE4ITEFE  EEXEE
Group Company
rEE FAH
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B--f —E-FF —E—-F —ZE-ZF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET THER TET
Analysed into: AR
Bank loans repayable: JEEMRRITERR
Within one year or —FR%k
on demand (Note) FEZ 5K (M7t) 38,822 110,547 - -
Other loans repayable: HiEEEER
Within one year or —ERK
on demand FEEK 50,112 - 25,137 -
88,934 110,547 25,137 -
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22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Note:

As further explained in notes 2.2 and 35 to the
financial statements, due to the adoption of HK
Interpretation 5 in the current year, the Group's
term loans in the amount of HK$38,822,000
(2010: HK$110,547,000) containing an on-
demand clause have been reclassified as current
liabilities. For the purpose of the above analysis,
the loans are included within current interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings and analysed
into bank loans repayable within one year or on
demand.

Based on the maturity terms of the loans, the
amounts repayable in respect of the loans are:
within one year or on demand HK$9,840,000
(2010: HK$49,548,000); in the second year
HK$9,679,000 (2010: HK$13,145,000); in the
third to fifth years, inclusive HK$16,329,000
(2010: HK$35,005,000); and beyond five years
HK$2,974,000 (2010: HK$12,849,000).

Certain of the Group's bank loans are secured by:

0

(i)

(i)

(V)

mortgages over the Group's land and building
together with its investment properties which
had an aggregate carrying value at the end
of the reporting period of approximately
HK$419,947,000 (2010: HK$457,601,000)
(notes 13 and 14);

corporate guarantees up to HK$142,285,000
(2010: HK$210,340,000) provided by the
Company;

rental assignment over certain of the Group’s
investment properties located in Hong Kong with
an aggregate carrying value of HK$404,000,000
(2010: HK$441,000,000) at 31 March 2011
which have been pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group; and

a pledge of the Group’s equity investments
amounting to HK$222,917,000 (2011: Nil) (note
19) in the prior year.

FHLEBEEARLE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
¥R MsE

22. 5t BRIT R E AL B (&)

BreE . FANEF RS IRE M 2.2 M35 B
B AREAFENRN
RAESRBESHE  AEEA
238,822,000 L (ZE—F
£ : 110,547,000/ 7T) K& H#A
B3 (H B 7B kEE R K
FOEKEDEARBSEGE -
Lo ms  ZEERBHE
ERBEt BIRITREMERA -
WA A —FRKEEREE
ZERITEIK °

REBEEXRWIEGER BHER
EEENSES: —FANNE
= 59,840,000 T (—ZZF —=F
£ 1 49,548,000/ 7T) ¢ B —F
9,679,000/ T (= —ZF F :
13,145,000 7C) : E=FF A
F(BEBHREMF) 16,329,000
Bt (ZZE—Z4F : 35,005,000
B or) s & A F1%2,974,000%8
JTL(=ZZF—Z4F 1 12,849,000/8
JT) °

AREEE TRITERA T HIAE
VL

AEBZ L RIEFERE
KEYEZIRBE K EH
R ZREEEZREERENS
419,947,000 T (—F —Z4F :
457,601,000 7o) (MIsE13 %
14) :

0)

ARAREBEZAFRERZZ
142,285,000 (=& —=F4F :
210,340,000 7T) :

)

KEBETREWHEZ2HeHE
FOBEMEMRES O KR=_Z
—— FZAZ=Z+—HZE@EA
{E404,000,0008 Tt (=& —=F
£ 441,000,000/ 7T) &
TEII - LIS FAEE W
RITEE &

(i)

EP=

EF O AKEEBZRERE B
222,917,000/ L 2 (==
—— 4 |)(fsE19) °

(iv)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R ML

22.

23.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group’s and the Company's other loans are
secured by the equity investments amounting to
HK$469,642,000 and HK$234,821,000, respectively
(2010: Nil).

Except for secured other loans of HK$46,783,000,
which are denominated in Singapore dollars, all bank
and other borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. All bank and other borrowings bear interest at
floating interest rates.

MORTGAGE LOAN ADVANCED FROM A
FELLOW SUBSIDIARY

In the prior year, the Group’s mortgage loan advanced
from a fellow subsidiary bore interest at 4.259%
per annum for the first year, 4.75% per annum for
the second year, and 0.5% per annum above the
commercial financing rate quoted by United Overseas
Bank Limited for the third year and thereafter. The
loan was denominated in Singapore dollars and was
repayable by 180 monthly instalments. The mortgage
loan was secured by the Group's investment property
with a carrying amount of HK$246,975,000 at 31
March 2010 (note 14). The Group had fully repaid the
loan during the year.

22.

23.

T B R 1T R EAth 5 =K ()

KEBEAQAAHNEME RS
Bl A & # 469,642,000 T &
234,821,000/8 7T B9 BE #E 15 & 1E & K
H(ZE—ZF ) -

Br B 3K H i B 5046,783,000/8 7T
T T B&EEEMNIN TE
RITREMERTDAB TAEEE
fif o ﬁﬁ’ﬁfﬂﬁ&ﬁi\@ ER SR 7O T

MERHE

CENY- PNCE- SRl &
&N

EF AKEREZMBRARRENZ
RIBERNE — FRF B425E5

BR B  RE_FIRF B475FF
HBRE MREZFREBEKE

fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ B EE - il

¢§O5Tu+éﬂ§ o 5% B R LA F AN
WILAEE - WA D 1801 AL FRE
zou%;z%EfTwALAEC_E TF=

A=+—8Z2iKMHEE/&246,975,000
B AEBIREMFEERT (M
14) cIRFER - AEE2HEEEH
EITJ\O

Group
AEE
2011 2010
—E——fF —ZF
HK$' 000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Analysed into: DR
Mortgage loan BERATEHHERZZ
repayable: RBER
Within one year or —F Ak
on demand JEE K - 3,780
In the second year FE—F - 3,968
In the third to E=ZENF
fifth years, inclusive (RIEEEMT) = 13,188
Beyond the fifth year FRHFIE - 36,316
- 57,252
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24. TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS, OTHER
PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS RECEIVED

The aged analysis below shows the Group’s and

Company's trade payables, based on goods receipt

date and the date when services are rendered.

FHLEBEEARLE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EEEE R EE

24 ENE SR - Bt KA H
b B RE WRIRE
ATRAAEERARAZENES
BRI B & & R BB AR A5 4R ¢ B
HEE 2 BRES DT -

Group Company
rEE YN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—EB——-F —ET-TF —E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000
THET FHET TET FHET
Trade payables: FET B SR -
Current to 180 days BIH Z180H 5,090 4,001 - -
Over 180 days HBiE180H 13,510 12,150 - -
18,600 16,151 - -
Accruals JE& R 5,200 4,611 2,234 1,870
Other payables and  E il FE 1 BR 3K
deposits received M e ite 25,542 38,084 = -
49,342 58,846 2,234 1,870

Deposits received of HK$1,550,000 (2010:
HK$10,518,000) were included as a non-current

liability. The trade and other payables are non-interest-

bearing and are normally settled on 90-day terms.

2 W% 491,550,000 0 (& — %
F 10,518,000 7T) ItEIE & &
EoENME SRR N E A FENMER

RTEE

—MRZANI0OR NAEH -
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FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R ML

25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

25. EEBIBEBEE BE

BEERBERBEMEERFAZES

M

EEBIFEE

Group
rEE
2011
—_E——F
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related Revaluation
depreciation of properties Total
TERBEAE
ZRMEBNITE MEE M st
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$’ 000
FTER TER THERT
At 1 April 2010 R_E—FFMA—H 5,162 37,745 42,907
Deferred tax charged/ FRRHEERNA
(credited) to the income 1Bk, (5t A) 2
statement during the year  IRIEFTE
(note 9) (F5E£9) (1,363) 4,481 3,118
Gross deferred tax liabilites MZZE——F=H=+—H
at 31 March 2011 ZERERIEREEER 3,799 42,226 46,025
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25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(continued)

Deferred tax assets

Group
A

FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBS RMsE

25 EEBIREE B E (FE)

EERBEEE

2011

—_E——F

Losses available

for offsetting against
future taxable profits

A £ 4K 84 R 2R
ERBURF Z B8
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2010 RZE—ZFFMA—H (7,745)
Deferred tax charged to the income FRKEXTANRZ
statement during the year (note 9) IRIERLIA (M1FE9) 210
Gross deferred tax assets RZE——F=A=+—H
at 31 March 2011 ZIRETIE A EBEE (7,535)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE
Group
AEE
2010
—E-EF
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related Revaluation
depreciation of properties Total
HERHE
SREBNTE MESR Bt
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
FAT FET FHL
1 April 2009 —ZZAFMA—H 3,577 22,316 25,893
Deferred tax charged to the income ﬁ?\ﬂlﬂl 5 & WHIER
statement during the year (note 9)  ZIEEF 1A ([ 759) 1,585 15,429 17,014
Gross deferred tax liabilities m= =+—H
at 31 March 2010 ZIE uﬁlﬁ Rk 5162 37,745 42,907
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FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R ML

25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(continued)

Deferred tax assets

Group
ANEE

25 EEBIREE B E (F)

FEERBEE

2010

—F—FF
Losses available

for offsetting against

future taxable profits

AT 85 R 2R

JEER T am F 2 518

HK$ 000

THET

At 1 April 2009 RZZEZNFMUH—HR (16,943)

Deferred tax charged to the income FRWmERANNRZ

statement during the year (note 9) PEIET IR (P 5E9) 9,198
Gross deferred tax assets RZE—ZTF=A=+—H

at 31 March 2010 IR E EARTR (7,745)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets

MINFME  MBERRRAE TIE

and liabilities have been offset in the statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of
the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial

reporting purposes:

EHBEEERBBES TEIE -WUT
HIONEMBHRBRAEZAREIEL
TR A R

Net deferred tax liabilities
recognised in the
consolidated statement

of financial position

Group
AEE
2011 2010
—=E——F —E—FF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET FAET
RER & ISR R 2%
R
EIEBIE
BEFHE 38,490 35,162
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25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong
and Indonesia of HK$224,636,000 (2010:
HK$209,194,000) and HK$33,737,000 (2010:
HK$27,551,000), respectively. The Company has
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$166,620,000
(2010: HK$162,256,000). The tax losses in Hong
Kong are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. The tax losses in Indonesia can be carried
forward for a maximum period of ten years. Deferred
tax assets of HK$32,904,000 (2010: HK$29,527,000)
have not been recognised in respect of tax losses
because these tax losses have arisen in companies
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profit will be available

against which the tax losses can be utilised.

At 31 March 2011, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2010: Nil) for tax
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
the Group's subsidiaries as the Group has no liability

to additional tax should such amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its

shareholders.

FHLEBEEARQE
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EEEE R EE

25 EEBIREE B E (FE)

AEBRBEBRENED RIEEBIE
E518224,636,000/8 L (Z T —FF -
209,194,000/ 7t) &33,737,000
BT (ZE—FF :27,551,000%
TC) c RRRIRBEBELEZBIEEE
73166,620,0008 7T (= &F —F 4 :
162,256,000 7C) - RBBE L 2
HMEEBEEAERABEEEEZSE
B2 RAIZRKERB & F o 7 ED
REEZRIBBEREZAFEETF -
AEEIW RGP ZEHIEEBERE
WE TR TH & EE32,904,0008 L (ZE —
T4 ¢ 29,527,0008 ) - BZE
HEBDREEEBEE —BREBEZA
Al MW RATAREELEER &
FIAK SH 2 SR IH 18 -

R-_E——F=A=+—H K&
2z B &~ 7] I 4 ] OR (E &R
AT 2 BE R AR A B R OR #E R
BEEMBERE(ZFT—FTF: H) -
ESR I /N - e e RN S E T i
SNRIBE RS ©

AN B A E BRI BB I R 2
EAFABRER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A F5ER R E
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. g
Shares B 13
Group and Company
AEEBRAAT
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZTF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FERx FAT
Authorised: VETE RN
40,000,000,000 ordinary shares 40,000,000,000/%
of HK$0.0025 each F R HE{E0.00257%8 7T
(2010: 40,000,000,000 2EBR(ZZE-ZF:
ordinary shares of 40,000,000,0000% & f%
HK$0.0025 each) E{E0.00258 7T 2 FiBAR) 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRBRERE
5,766,968,705 ordinary shares 5,766,968,705%
of HK$0.0025 each SR (E0.00258 7T
(2010: 5,765,288,705 ZEBR(ZE-ZTF
ordinary shares of 5,765,288, 705/ & i%
HK$0.0025 each) E{E0.00258 7T 2 FiBAR) 14,417 14,414

During the year, 1,680,000 share options were
exercised at the exercise price of HK$0.21 per share
(note 27), resulting in the issue of 1,680,000 shares
of HK$0.0025 each for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of HK$352,000. An amount of
HK$91,000 was transferred from the share option

reserve to the share premium account upon the

exercised of the share options.
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FHLEBEEARLE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
¥R MsE

26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 26. B (&)
Shares (continued) B 15 (&)
A summary of the transaction during the year with FRN - BEAQRFBEETRA Ll
reference to the above movement in the Company's BEgoRxSEMMT
issued share capital is as follows:
Share
Number of Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total
&7 &7 i)
RGBEE R 2% R ER &t
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTERT FET
At 1 April 2009, RZZEZNFMA—A
31 March 2010 “E-ZF=A=+—H
and 1 April 2010 EZZT-TFMA—A 5,765,288,705 14,414 351,944 366,358
Share options exercised B 1713 /B8 42
(as above) (mk) 1,680,000 3 440 443
At 31 March 2011 RZE——%=A=+—H 5,766,968,705 14,417 352,384 366,801
Share options BE PR RE

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the

share options issued under the scheme are included

in note 27 to the financial statements.

AN B R AR T 8 A R AR IR ax At &
BITHMBREZFBHRN Y B HRE

MIaE27 ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
"Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the

success of the Group’s operations.
Details of the Scheme are as follows:

(a) Participants
Participants are any directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the
Company and employees of the Group and any
advisors (professional or otherwise), consultants,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture
business partners, promoters, service providers
of any member of the Group who the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) considers,
at its sole discretion, have contributed to the
Group or any shareholders of the Group (the

"Grantee").

(b) Subscription price
The subscription price shall be determined by the
Board at its absolute discretion but in any event

shall not be less than the greatest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares of HK$0.0025
each of the Company (the “Shares”) as
stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant
of an option (the “Date of Grant");
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

©

(d)

©

Subscription price(continued)

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the Date of Grant;

and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Scheme
shall not exceed 10% in nominal amount of
the issued share capital of the Company on the
adoption date of the Scheme (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit"). Options which lapse in
accordance with the terms of this Scheme will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the

Scheme Mandate Limit.

Maximum number of options granted to
each participant

The maximum number of Shares in respect of
options that may be granted to a specifically
identified single Grantee under this Scheme within
any 12-month period shall not (when aggregated
with any Shares subject to any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company) exceed 1% of the

Shares in issue (the “Individual Limit").

Period of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in a period notified
by the Board to each Grantee at the time of
making an offer, which shall not expire later than

10 years from the Date of Grant.

FHLEBEEARLE
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FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R ML

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(f) Remaining life of the Scheme
The Scheme is valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on its adoption date, 23
September 2002, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended.

(g) Acceptance of options
The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 30 days from the Date of Grant
upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the Grantee.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under

27. BB RESTE (&)

®

(®

=t B 2 Rk F A

ZErEB N ERBH T —
FAA-t+t=HRF#A+FRNEA
M BRBITHEHREERT RS

g

i3

EZXBRE

B S B HEFI0ORA - AE
ANBBXMHIVBETZEER
BARESETHEEREZE
# o

BT EE THERSE AED KA
BHREBRRRGREZERN -

9 B Er 8IS 8 R 1T 2 B AR B

the Scheme during the year: E=§ N
2011 2010
—B--f —T-TF

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options

IEY S ¥
TeEE BRERE 1TE(E BREHE
HK$ per share '000 HK$ per share '000
SRET T BRET T
At 1 April REA—H 0.2667 135,660 0.2667 139,230
Granted during the year  FREF 0.2100 302,808 - -
Forfeited* during the year FRZU* - - 0.2667 (3,570)
Exercised during the year FR{T{E 0.2100 (1,680) - -
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 0.2276 436,788 0.2667 135,660

The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for share options exercised during the year
as HK$0.27 per share (2010: No share options were
exercised).

* Forfeiture of options is accounted for in lapse of options.

164  Annual Report 2011 %

FR-TEZBERERITEBHZ
I 15 B D (B 18 R B RX0.2778 7T

*

T-TF WEBREETE) -

RUSEE B HEAF R B R R UK E -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBS RMsE

27. B8 (&)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share REMEBRR mRITE2BEREZ
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting ITEEERITEBHNT

period are as follows:

2011
—_E——F
Number of options Exercise price Exercise period
BREHE TEE TS
000 HK$ per share
F BRET
135,660 0.2667* 27-04-07 to 26-04-12
—EELtFMA=-+tHE
—E-"HFWmAZ=-tXH
301,128 0.2100 21-01-11 to 20-01-21
—g-—-f-A=+-AEF
—E-—f—H=+H
436,788
2010
—E-FF
Number of options Exercise price Exercise period
B ERA 1TIE(E 1T{EHA
'000 HK$ per share
T BARETT
135,660 0.2667* 27-04-07 to 26-04-12

—EELFPA-_++HZE
—E——FPA=-+/XH

*  The exercise price and the number of relevant
outstanding share options were adjusted as a result
of a bonus issue. Further details of these adjustments

were included in the Company's announcement dated 8

September 2008.

* O BBEARITEBRE ZITEE R
BERBEITARMELAR - ZFH
BZE-—FTHBHRARAR=-ZF
ZNFAANBELEZA S -

There is no vesting period for the outstanding share Y REBNEE L NKRITEZHER

options granted to employees and directors.

R 4 5R B HA o
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 27.BIRESE (8)

166

The fair value of the share options granted during
the year was HK$20,576,000 (HK$0.0704 each and
HK$0.0541 each for share option granted to directors
and other employees, respectively) (2010: Nil), of
which the group recognised a share option expenses
of HK$20,576,000 (2010: Nil) during the year.

The fair values of equity-settled share options granted
during the year and in 2008 were estimated as at
the date of grant, using the binomial model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. The following table lists the

inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) K 2 R (%)

Expected volatility (%) T8 HA K 18 (%)

Historical volatility (%) & 5282 08 (%)

Risk-free interest rate (%) fm 3 B A1) 2 (%)

Expected life of options 8 AR ¥ 2 7B HA 4 HF
(years) ()

Weighted average share price IN##E 19 &) J& &
(HK$ per share) (BB T)

The expected life of the options is based on the
historical data over the past three years and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,

which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was

incorporated into the measurement of fair value.
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2011 2008
—EB-—F —EENF
3.660 4.000
50.000 39.000
50.000 39.000
2.817 4.114
10.000 5.000
0.210 0.2667
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27.

28.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The 1,680,000 share options exercised during the
year resulted in the issue of 1,680,000 ordinary
shares of the Company and new share capital of
HK$3,000 and share premium of HK$440,000 (before
issue expenses), as further detailed in note 26 to the

financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
436,788,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of an additional
436,788,000 ordinary shares of the Company together
with the increase in the share capital of HK$1,092,000
and share premium of HK$124,739,000 (before issue

expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 436,788,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 7.57% of the Company’s shares in issue

as at that date.

RESERVES

(@) Group
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 58 and 59 of the

financial statements.

FHLEBEEARQE
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EEEE R EE

27. B8 (&)

F R AR A E1,6800001 8 A%
1T M 1T 7 1,680,0000% & i@ % -
¥ AR AN A3,000/8 7T 0 IR 19 s B A
440,000/8 7T (RHREITER) @ #
—SHBERM B mERMETE26 -

RmER - RIEZE - A2 A
B 436,788,00017 i A% 7 18 R AT o
ERARBEBERAERBT  BEIT
FErRRITECERESERETE
4N436,788,0000% A& 1~ 7] E i A% - &
[ ¥ hn A% 251,092,000 7T & f% 19 '
8124,739,0007% 7T (< F1 Bk 3% 17 74
%) e

RS BEREKx B BRIEZ
&I AR R H436,788,0001) B
RERKITE NWREAATEBRD
TR HI7.57% °

28. i 1&

(a) =& H
AREEZHERBEBRERRAEE
EBAFFE2HEZEDHRUH
WK FSBRFESIB LR E R
HEHREKZED -
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FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5 R R EE

28. RESERVES (continued)

28. & (&)

(b) Company (b)yx= 27
Share Share
premium option  Contributed  Retained
account  reserve surplus profits Total
Ry  BRE
HER #E  EERH RERT CE
Notes HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
it TEL  TER FET FET FET
At 1 April 2009 RZEZNFMA—A 351,944 6,057 162,587 49,113 569,701
Total comprehensive KEERE
income for the year gyt 10 - - - 84,537 84,537
Interim 2010 dividend —Z-ZEAHKRE 1 - - - (11,531)  (11,531)
Proposed 2010 final —T-TERE
dividend RERE 1 - - - (23061)  (23,061)
Transfer of share option N
reserve upon the R R
forfeiture or expiry of BhRERE
share options ER - (124) - 124 -
At 31 March 2010 and RZZ-ZF=A=+—H
at 1 April 2010 ERZZE-TEMA—A 351,944 5,933 162,587 99,182 619,646
Total comprehensive TEERE
income for the year gyt 10 - - - 197915 197,915
Issue of shares BIRH 26 440 (91) - - 349
Fquity-settled share option ~ LAiEZ & & A)
arrangements BRETH 27 - 20576 - - 20,576
Interim 2011 dividend ZE-—E4HKRE 1 - - - (17296)  (17,296)
Proposed 2011 final “E-—FER
dividend RERE 1 - - - (34602)  (34,602)
At 31 March 2011 R-_E-——%=A=+-H 352,384 26418 162,587 245199 786,588
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28. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Company (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Group arose from:

0

(ii)

the Group's reorganisation on 13 June 1990,
representing the excess of the nominal value
of the Company's shares issued under the
Group’s reorganisation, and the nominal
value of the shares and share premium of
the former holding company acquired by the

Group; and

a transfer from the share premium account
pursuant to the capital restructuring on 2
June 1999.

The contributed surplus of the Company arose

from:

)

(if)

the reorganisation mentioned in note
28(b)(i) above, representing the excess of
the nominal value of the Company's shares
issued under the Group's reorganisation and
the then consolidated net asset value of the

acquired subsidiaries; and

a transfer from the share premium account
pursuant to the capital restructuring on 2
June 1999.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda

(as amended), the contributed surplus of the

Company is distributable to shareholders in

certain circumstances prescribed by Section 54

thereof.
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FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R ML

28.

29.

30.

RESERVES (continued)

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted but are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-
based payment transactions in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to
the share premium account when the related options
are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits

should the related share options expire or be forfeited.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
outstanding guarantees of HK$142,285,000 (2010:
HK$210,340,000) given to banks to secure general
credit facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Credit facilities in an aggregate amount of
HK$38,822,000 (2010: HK$90,547,000) had been
utilised by these subsidiaries in respect of these

guarantees as at the end of the reporting period.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s bank and margin account
facilities and the mortgage loan advanced from a
fellow subsidiary, which are secured by the assets
of the Group, are included in notes 13, 14 and 19,

respectively, to the financial statements.
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FHELEEEREERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA ¥ Rk R B s
31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 3.EEHELH
(a) As lessor () AHBEASH

The Group leases its cruise ships (note 13) and REEBERBLKEHEZHEMRE
investment properties (note 14) under operating E#8bm (ME13) R EDZE (M
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for F14) mABZHEHENF—F
terms ranging from one to three years. BE=F o
At 31 March 2011 and 2010, the Group had total R ——FR - —ZF=
future minimum lease receivables under non- A=+—H XEHEREHEHE
cancellable operating leases with its charters and MAAKNEPEIZZ T A #EH &
tenants falling due as follows: EHEERTIFHRNEK 2

RREEEESRBLELNT -

Group
AEE
2011 2010
—2——F _—T-FF
HK$'000 HK$' 000
FET FHET
Within one year —F R 22,514 41,864
In the second to fifth E_EERF
years, inclusive (REEERF) 5,256 28,957
27,770 70,821
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FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R ML

31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(continued)

(b) As lessee
The Group leases certain of its commercial
properties under operating lease arrangements,
with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one

to two years.

At 31 March 2011 and 2010, the Group had
total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

3. EEHE LB (&)

(b) AEBA & 65

AREEREBERKEZHERHHEE
HETHAME memzME
AN F—FEMF -

R-B——FR_F—FF=
A=+—RB XEBERENTA

KEHEARTIFHA
XNZREKRKEESKRIBLR
wR

Group
AEE
2011 2010
—2——F _—T-FF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Within one year —FNR 271 201
In the second to fifth EZEERF
years, inclusive (REEERF) 65 -
336 201
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR R R B
32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS R.BEEALRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial BRAMEHmREMIEOSHEEN
statements, the Group had the following material FA AEEERABAEALZERXN
transactions with related parties during the year: RSWT
(a) Related party transactions in connection with the (a) EASEEHEBBEBE Z2BBEA
Group's operations: TX5
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
Notes HK$' 000 HK$" 000
izt T#ET FHET
Rental income received B WREXHEBEARZ
from a fellow subsidiary & U8 A 0) 240 240
Interest expenses paid to BRI EMEBE AR Z
a fellow subsidiary B @) 1,350 2,903
Notes: &t -
(i) Rental income was charged based on a tenancy () e AERAXEBRER XK B
agreement entered between the Group and NEEIS 2 A E B WE -
a fellow subsidiary at a monthly rental rate of AT % &20,000%8 T °
HK$20,000.
(i) Interest expenses were paid for the mortgage (i) FERZIYRERE RN E QR
loan advanced by a fellow subsidiary at an annual NMZzEBERM A NEE
interest rate of 5% (2010: 5%) for the year. ZENKRASE (ZE—FF

5/E) e
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FHLEBEEARQS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R ML

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Balance with a related company

As disclosed in the consolidated statement of
financial position, the Group had an outstanding
balance due from a related company of
HK$2,093,000 (2010: HK$970,000) which
arose from the receipt from the customers by
the related company on behalf of the Group.
This balance is unsecured, interest-free and has
no fixed terms of repayment. Particulars of the
amount due from a related company, disclosed
pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

BEQRER

Name of the related company

Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

REBEALRS (K)

(®)

HEBEQR &R

BANERE M ER R KRR - B
BRAARBAEEBRDELP K
TE 1 FE UL B 3 A B R IE 2 KRB
15 % #% /52,093,000 T (= =F
—Z 4 : 970,0008 7)) ° &% H
HHEER 2EREEE
BRH -BEBREAEARREZ
HIEREEBRAGIEHIE161B

The related company is beneficially owned by
certain close family members of certain directors
(Mr. Wilson Ng, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Mr. Ng Wee
Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng)
of the Company.
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

() Loans advanced from non-controlling shareholders

FHLEBEEARLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
¥R MsE

2.FREALXRS (&)
(0) AN B DAz IEE R E

of the Group's subsidiaries 2T ER
2011 2010
=25 Z—T-FF
Notes HK$'000 HK$" 000
Kt TET THET
First loan BHEEX 0 58,334 55,713
Second loan REER (i) 131,823 131,823
Third loan E-ZEX (i) - 51,060
190,157 238,596

Notes: Hrat -

(i) With respect to the first loan, pursuant to the () BEEERMS WELXEHE

shareholders’ agreement entered into between
the Group and a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary, the non-controlling shareholder
agreed not to demand repayment of the loan until
the subsidiary has the ability to do so and prior
consent was obtained from the Group. In addition,
if the paid-up share capital of the subsidiary and
the shareholders’ loans shall be insufficient to
meet the operating expenses, the non-controlling
shareholder and the Group agree to either apply
for allotment of shares from the subsidiary or
provide a shareholders’ loan in proportion to their
respective shareholding in the subsidiary. The non-
controlling shareholder is a fellow subsidiary of the

Company. The loan is unsecured and interest-free.

B —fE M B ARz — & IFER
MR ET S 2 B R M - 5% & 3F
ERERAEZEENEARHA
BRENERLBIGAEE 2 FX
AERTEEREREER It
b WA BRI E AR R
B B AR Ko B R B RS B A R
NEEMX - FEEBRBRR RA
SEREERESANMER
A HY B LE 01 EB A5 A R BT /@
AR E MR HBERER -
ZEFEERBERBERNRARZE
AMBRAR - ERREEM R
RE e
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FHLEBEEARQS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R ML

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

() Loans advanced from non-controlling shareholders

of the Group’s subsidiaries (continued)

Notes: (continued)

@i

(i)

With respect to the second loan, pursuant to a
shareholders’ agreement entered into between
the Group and a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary, the shareholder shall not demand
repayment of this loan unless a resolution in
writing signed by all shareholders of the Group
for the demand of repayment has been duly
passed at a general meeting. In the opinion of the
directors, after confirming with the non-controlling
shareholder, there was no intention for the non-
controlling shareholder to demand the Group to
repay this loan in the next twelve months from
the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,
the second loan was classified as a non-current
liability. The non-controlling shareholder is a fellow
subsidiary of the Company. The loan is unsecured

and interest-free.

With respect to the third loan, the non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary, who granted the
third loan to the Group’s subsidiary include (1)
a director of the Company; (2) a close family
member of the Company's directors; and (3) a
company beneficially owned by the Company’s
directors and their close family members. The loan

was fully repaid during the year.
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

©)

In the prior year, the Group’s mortgage loan
advanced from a fellow subsidiary bore interest
at 4.25% per annum for the first year, 4.75%
per annum for the second year, and 0.5% per
annum above the commercial financing rate
quoted by United Overseas Bank Limited for
the third year and thereafter. The mortgage loan
was secured by a legal mortgage on the Group's
investment property with a carrying amount of
HK$246,975,000 as at 31 March 2010. The loan

was fully repaid during the year.

The compensation of key management personnel

of the Company has been disclosed in note 8(a).

The related party transactions in respect of items (a)

to (d) above also constitute connected transactions

or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

FHLEBEEARLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EEEE RS EE

REBEALRS (K)

(d)

(®

EF AEBRREMBERAR
NZZBERRE —FRFER
A25BHERE  RE-_FKF
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FHLEBEEARQS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

3. REAE s 2R T A
RMEBK SESRMIAZET
BT

2011
—E——fF
Financial assets
TREE
Group
rEE
Financial assets at Available-
fair value through for-sale
profit or loss =  Loans and financial
held for trading receivables assets Total
AFEEIE
ZERMEE ERk AHEE
-REEE RBURER EREE B
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TER THERT TERT BT
Available-for-sale investments ~ A[ {45 E 2 184 - - 780 780
Trade receivables (note 18) EUE SR (HE18) - 11,234 - 11,234
Deposits and other receivables 32 & & £ 4 JE g BR 5%
(note 18) (BFzE18) - 5,245 - 5,245
Equity investments at fair BRBRERATEE
value through profit or loss SRR 2 IR #E 1R & 469,642 - - 469,642
Due from a related company  JE U BgE 2 5] 5UE - 2,093 - 2,093
Bank deposits RITIEH - 32,594 - 32,594
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEEY - 609,073 - 609,073
469,642 660,239 780 1,130,661
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

FHLEBEEARLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EEEE RS EE

3.1BWAHE s z2Em T A (&)

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting BuR (&)

period are as follows: (continued)

2011

—EB-—F
Financial liabilities
g =R

RBEEHR SRR TAZER

Group
AEE

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost

LU SR At &

ZeRmBeE

HK$'000

FET

Trade payables (note 24) FERTE SRR (Mi5E24) 18,600
Other payables and deposits received B 4th & AT BR R R B iR &

(note 24) (Mf5E24) 25,542
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHRERTT B H At fE K 88,934
Loans advanced from non-controlling A E B AR 2 IEERARR

shareholders of the Group's subsidiaries B2 ER 190,157

323,233

Annual Report 2011 F R

179



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited

FHLEBEEARQS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows: (continued)

3.RBAHE s z2Em T A (&)

REEHR SRS TAZER
BT ()

2010
—T-%F
Financial assets
EWEE
Group
rEHE
Financial assets at Available-
fair value through for-sale
profit or loss = Loans and financial
held for trading  receivables assets Total
FEREBERR
RN EEDE
ZEREE Rk AHEE
—-RHIEEE EBURER REE mE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000
FHET TExT THET THET
Available-for-sale investments AHEEZRE - - 780 780
Trade receivables (note 18) EUE SR (H5E18) - 33,822 - 33,822
Deposits and other receivables e RE A ERIR R
(note 18) (Kfsx18) - 8,167 - 8,167
Equity investments at fair BRBRRATER
value through profit or loss FIBRZ RN E 422,229 - - 422,229
Due from a related company FE N B E A RIFRIB - 970 - 970
Bank deposits BITER - 99,974 - 99,974
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY - 148,505 - 148,505
422229 291,438 780 714,447
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FHELEEEREERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA 53R R 5
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33 IRERIB S TSR T A ()
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REBERR SFEeRITAZE®
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting BT« (8)
period are as follows: (continued)
2010
—F-FF
Financial liabilities
TREE
Group
REHE

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost

A SH A AN ET 2

ZemBE

HK$' 000

FA&T

Trade payables (note 24) JET B 5 BR R (Pt 5E24) 16,151
Other payables and deposits received EAth BT BR R R B R &

(note 24) (Mg 5E24) 38,084
Interest-bearing bank loans FFRIRITE R 110,547
Mortgage loan advanced from a fellow RAMEBRRRNZ

subsidiary I E R 57,252
Loans advanced from non-controlling AEEM B AR ZIEERRKR

shareholders of the Group's subsidiaries 2N ZER 238,596

460,630
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FHLEBEEARQS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows: (continued)

3.RBAHE s z2Em T A (&)

REEHR SRS TAZER
BT ()

2011
—g2-—-fF
Financial assets
STREE
Company
PN
Financial assets at Available-
fair value through for-sale
profit or loss - Loans and financial
held for trading receivables assets Total
DNEFEEIE
ZEMEE EXR AHEE
-BEEE REUER SREE e
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’' 000
TET THEIT TET THERT
Available-for-sale investments AHEEZRE - - 780 780
Due from subsidiaries & W B /B8 /A B IR - 430,809 - 430,809
Trade receivables (note 18) EH B SRR (FF3E18) - 54 - 54
Deposits and other receivables e &H i & R X
(note 18) (Kfzx18) - 12 - 12
Equity investments at fair FEREREATEE
value through profit or loss HIBR 2 IRIEIRE 234,821 - - 234,821
Bank deposits RITEH - 32,594 - 32,594
Cash and cash equivalents ReENREEEY - 490,866 - 490,866
234,821 954,335 780 1,189,936
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FHELEEEREERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LB
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33.3%EB8o 2@ T A (8)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REBERR SEeRTAZERER
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting BT« (8)
period are as follows: (continued)
2011
—Z2-—%F
Financial liabilities
Azl S=Ri
Company
NN
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
DU s A5t &
Z2EemBasE
HK$'000
FHET
Interest-bearing other borrowings H Azt B K 25,137
Due to subsidiaries FEAT BT B A Rl X IE 328,223
353,360
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FHLEBEEARQS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows: (continued)

3.RBAHE s z2Em T A (&)

REEHR SRS TAZER
BT ()

2010
—E-TF
Financial assets
EWEE
Company
AN/NS
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
ER K AR E
JE W BR K TRLEE L]
HK$ 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000
FHET THET FET
Available-for-sale investments ~ AI{EIEE 2 K& - 780 780
Due from subsidiaries FE UL BT B8~ B 5 IE 618,331 - 618,331
Deposits and other receivables 1% & K& H fth & U B 3¢
(note 18) (FizE18) 96 - 96
Bank deposits RITHERK 99,974 - 99,974
Cash and cash equivalents BeLBREEEY 114,704 - 114,704
833,105 780 833,885
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33.

34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting BT
period are as follows: (continued)

2010

—ET-FF

Financial liabilities

TEaE

Due to subsidiaries FEAST I & A R 5R1E

FHLEBEEARLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EEEE RS EE

3.1BWAHE s z2Em T A (&)

RBEEHR SRR TAZER

(%)

Company

ZANVN

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
LABESH R AR EH &
ZEmBEE

HK$ 000

FET

176,115

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company's
financial assets and financial liabilities approximates to
their fair values.

Fair value hierarchy
The Group and the Company uses the following
hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value

of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value
are observable, either directly or indirectly

M4 AFEBEBERLAFEEEX
$%l&$“ﬂMé@ﬁF&%@
BEMEEEEIEAEEE-

§ W

®
|-H>

D

$208 :

E 5

BEER
KA 2 BAH 51| JE R B TE M
TR TAMQFEE:

REBRME EHEREER
BEMEE (T AEE)
BHEHAFEEE

RAR S E BT (H 5 R F
BEEEAFTENEERR
ASHH A HERAEEER
EIFFENRQFEE
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FHELEEEREERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A F5 R R ML

34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 34 N FEERAFEERE R (&)

186

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which any inputs which have
a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are not based on observable market

data (unobservable inputs)

As at 31 March 2011, the financial instruments
measured at fair value held by the Group and the
Company comprised of equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss of HK$469,642,000 (2010:
HK$422,229,000) and HK$234,821,000 (2010: Nil),

respectively, and were classified as Level 1.

During the vyear, there was no transfer of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfer into or out of Level 3 (2010: Nil).

The Group and the Company did not have any
financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31
March 2011 and 2010.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, a mortgage
loan advanced from a fellow subsidiary, bank deposits
and cash and short term deposits. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its

operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of

these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term

debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Group does not hedge interest rate fluctuations.
However, management closely monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest

rate exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's and the
Company's profit after tax and retained profits (through

the impact on floating rate borrowings).
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FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R aE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

2011

Hong Kong dollar
Hong Kong dollar

Singapore dollar

Singapore dollar

2010

Hong Kong dollar
Hong Kong dollar

Singapore dollar

Singapore dollar
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5. BRBEEEEREE (&)

A == m by ()

Group
AEE
Increase/
(decrease) in
Increase/ profit after
(decrease) in tax and

basis points retained profits

PR & IEF

B RREBEF
EH/ (TR #i/ (i)
HK$'000

TER

15 (53)
(15) 53
15 (59)
(15) 59
15 (138)
(15) 138
15 71
(15) 71

Company
NG|
Increase/
(decrease) in
Increase/ profit after
(decrease) in tax and

basis points  retained profits

BRBLZIEF

BEg KRB EF
EH/(THE)  #m/ (BD)
HK$'000

TERT

15 )
(15) 2
15 (29)
(15) 29
15 -
(15) -
15 -
(15) -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures.
These exposures arise from sales or purchases by
operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currencies. Most of the Group's revenue
and costs were denominated in Singapore dollars,
Indonesia rupiah and Hong Kong dollars. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, management closely monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the Singapore dollar exchange rate, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's and the
Company's profit after tax and retained profits (due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA PSRRI EE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

2011

If Hong Kong dollar
weakens against the
Singapore dollar

If Hong Kong dollar
strengthens against

the Singapore dollar

2010

If Hong Kong dollar
weakens against the
Singapore dollar

If Hong Kong dollar
strengthens against

the Singapore dollar
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S BE L Bsx (48)
Group Company
rEHE NG|
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/  (decrease) in Increase/  (decrease) in

(decrease) in
foreign

currency rate

HEER
#E/ (BE)

%

10

(10)

profit after

tax and
retained profits
BB B R
REBA
#gm/ (RL)
HK$' 000
THER

32,232

(32,232)

7,344

(7,344)

(decrease) in
foreign

currency rate

HEER
#E/ (B21E)

%

10

(10)

(10)

profit after

tax and
retained profits
BRB R F R
REER
#gm/ (AL)
HK$' 000
THER

21,093

(21,093)
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group provided services only to recognised and
creditworthy third parties and related parties. It is
the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's

exposure to bad debts is not significant.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other
financial assets of the Group which comprise cash
and cash equivalents, available-for-sale financial
investments, an amount due from a related company
and other receivables, the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of

these instruments.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There is no significant credit risk as
the tenants have paid security deposits as collateral to
the Group for the lease of cruise ships and investment

properties.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are disclosed in note 18 to the financial

statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments
and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and

projected cash flows from operations.
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FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R ML

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through

the use of bank loans.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities

as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

5. BERBEREEEREE (&)

REE S E b (&)
AREEZBRERERERRITEN
REFEECEBUERBEEHE ZHZF

1y -

RIFEE T RITIRERR - AT ETY
AEBRHEMNRZERBEDH

contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows: H
Group
&
2011
—F-—-F
3 to
On Less than less than Tto5
demand 3 months 12 months years Total
=f@A
HE =f8A +=fEA —-Z25F B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THER THER THER THER
Interest-bearing bank loans (Note) T BRITEH (HiZ) 38,822 - - - 38,822
Other borrowings HibfE® 50,112 - - - 50,112
Loans advanced from AEEHERR
non-controlling shareholders ZIERIRR
of the Group's subsidiaries B ZER - - - 190,157 190,157
Trade payables BB 5 R 13,510 5,090 - - 18,600
Other payables and Hin IR R
deposits received Blge 13,199 9,935 858 1,550 25,542
115,643 15,025 858 191,707 323,233
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FHELEEEREERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA¥5 R R EE
35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 5. EEKBEEEEENRKE (8&)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REESEE (&)
Group
T&HE
2010
—B-FF
3to
On  Llessthan  less than 1t05 Over
demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
=faA
B A +TZfA —-Z8hF BALE fm
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TRET TAR TAR TEL TET TET
(Restated) ~ (Restated) ~ (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)
(g=y) (Kgy) (£8H) (£EF) (£8H) (KEF)
Interest-bearing bank loans (Note) & £8847 &3 (A1i2) 110,547 - - - - 110,547
Mortgage loan advanced EE NG
from a fellow subsidiary LEBER - 1,640 4918 26,232 42616 75,406
Loans advanced from FEENERA
non-controlling shareholders ZEERRR
of the Group's subsidiaries PNZEH - - - 23859 - 23859
Trade payables ERESER 12,150 4,001 - - - 16,151
Other payables and Hi B RAR
deposits received BlEe 17818 8,638 1,110 10,518 - 38,084
140,515 14,279 6,028 275,346 42,616 478,784
Note: Mt -
Included in interest-bearing bank loans of the Group are RNREBMETEETERBIESHEEDR
term loans in the amount of HK$38,822,000 (31 March 838,822,000 L (ZE—ZFTF =4
2010: HK$110,547,000). Each of the loan agreements =+—H 110,547,000 7T) - 8 E X
contains a repayment on-demand clause giving the bank the HBEREIRELEENEERR A TR
unconditional right to call the loan at any time and therefore, TTEAREER - AR SR B - Bt -
for the purpose of the above maturity profile, the total P BEBEARS S BEHE A E
amount is classified as “on demand”. EREE| -
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FHELEEERERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R ML

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

5. BRBEEEEREE (&)

REBES R (&)
HiaE : (#)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Note: (continued)

Notwithstanding the above clauses, the directors do not BEAR LG EFHEE BHEENR
believe that the loans will be called, in their entirety or in BreRI2EAREHXTLEE - B
part, within 12 months and they consider that the loan will ERE BHEFREEREBEER D=
R BIREE - ETERIARE

o

be repaid in accordance with the maturity dates as set out in

the loan agreement. This evaluation was made considering,
the financial position of the Group at the date of approval of
these financial statements, the Group’s compliance with the
loan covenants, the lack of events of default, and the fact

that the Group has made all previously schedule repayments

B B RS R & B BIEY BE ISR O - R
SEAETETERZH WEKEFR
A R 7 S5 (8 HE B (B R P B 8 A 2 A SR0R -
BREAEEEFRNGER  RBEHKR
FFERITERNEFTORFTREROT

on time. In accordance with the terms of the loans of the
Group, the contractual undiscounted payment of interest-

bearing bank loans at the end of the reporting period will be

as follows:
Group
AEE
3 to
Less than less than 1to5 Over
3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
=@A
DR 2LR
=@EA +=8A —ZEHF BBREF B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTER FHET FHET FHET
2011 —E——F 1,936 8,923 27,719 3,047 41,625
2010 ZE-ZF 42,906 8,697 52,485 13,379 117,467
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Note: (continued)

Company
AT

FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBS RMsE

5. M ERMREREEERBEE (&)

REBES R (E)
Mt < ()

On demand

2011 2010
—g-—5 —zT-=zF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
T Fi R
Interest-bearing other borrowings EHAhEH B &K 25,137 -
Due to subsidiaries FE A B B8 A m) 3R 1A 328,223 176,115
Guarantees given to banks in MR T W B AT
connection with facilities B E 45 T

granted to subsidiaries RITHHEIR 142,285 210,340
495,645 386,455

Equity price risk R 7B A% B B
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of s 4 B 18 | 2 52 48 AR #E 48 BUK ¥ &
equity securities decrease as a result of changes in BRlFESFEEESMERNERE
the levels of equity indices and the value of individual FRAFETH®KOER R-FT——
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk FZA=+—H XEEMMEHED
arising from individual equity investments classified as BEEERRRESBEAFRAEBR
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss BRAFEEIEZREREE?
(note 19) as at 31 March 2011. The Group's listed FHRERE (M5E19) « XEEB
investments are listed on the stock exchange of Hong FTREREREE R INK 2 F
Kong and Singapore and are valued at quoted market FREMET WIS RIL

prices at the end of the reporting period.

HwHEE -
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FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R ML

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES 35.

AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

The equity market indices for the following stock
exchanges, at the close of business of the nearest
trading day in the year to the end of the reporting
period, and their respective highest and lowest points

during the year were as follows:

31 March

2011

=t

ZA=+-8

Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index AE-BEEY 23,528
Singapore — Straits Times Index N — 8 W R E 3,106

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
every 10% change in the fair value of the equity
investments, with all other variables held constant,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the

reporting period.

Annual Report 2011 3§

B %5 L B R B AR R UK (D)

J% A (B 4% = B ()
RBERROKORH H & EEH
RRE - THEHFZHMEM SR
BEH UERFRAEZENRES
FEAREIT

High/low 31 March High/low
2011 2010 2010
—E--§ —Z-ZfF —T-%F
B/ =R=t-8 &/
24,989/ 21,239 23,100/
18,972 13,412
3,314/ 2,887 2,947/
2,648 1,690

55 AR 45 8 7 9 45 B R 2 R T
H I AEIR E 2 AT EE S R 10%
BE G o
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FHELEEEREERQA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MBS RMsE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

5. M ERMREREEERBEE (&)

Equity price risk (continued) PR REE % E b ()
Group
rEE
Increase/
(decrease) in
Carrying profit after
amount Increase/ tax and
of equity (decrease) retained
investment in fair value profits
AFEE BBl A
RERE @, RRE A
HEREE (B 2) #m,/ ()
HK$'000 % HK$' 000
TER TER
2011 —E——F
Investments listed in: RELETR
Hong Kong — Held-for-trading BE-—RIEEE 188,464 10 15,737
(10) (15,737)
Singapore — Held-for-trading Mg —HEESR 281,178 10 23,478
(10) (23,478)
2010 —B-FF
Investments listed in: RELETR:
Hong Kong — Held-for-trading BEB-FHIEEER 316,716 10 26,446
(10) (26,446)
Singapore — Held-for-trading M —SEEE 105,513 10 8,810
(10) (8,810)
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FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R ML

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

Company
AT

2011 —E——fF

REEMN
BE-HEEE

Investments listed in:

Hong Kong — Held-for-trading

Singapore — Held-for-trading g —FEEE

Annual Report 2011 3§

5. BERBEREEEREE (&)

Carrying
amount
of equity

investment

RERE
9 B T B
HK$'000

TR

94,232

140,589

% HE (B 4% = B (4

Increase/
(decrease)
in fair value
NFEE
wm,

(R 2)

%

10
(10)

10
(10)

Increase/
(decrease) in
profit after
tax and
retained
profits
BRBE & 3 A
RRE A
#m,/ (B)
HK$'000
TER

7,868
(7,868)

11,739
(11,739)
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 March 2011 and 31
March 2010.

FHLEBEEARLE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
¥R MsE

5. ERMEREEERBEE (&)

BEXER
AEEBEAERZTEZRABRAER
AEEBREIRFELEEBZR
AEERERBREN LR AF
HEBWIRSWREE -

REBRBELEGRHEZEZ(LERE
RNAEBILIMATE - BHEFF B
BARGERE AEBERAHEHYRRZ
KB~ AR RREE AR BEITHAR ©
AREBAIAZIHIFERZEMER
BRERS -RBEEZE-_FT——F=H
=+ BRZZE-ZEF=ZA=+—
HIEFERN  ARAEEEANER -
B FOmA2 I M\ IR g -
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FHLEBEEARQE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R ML

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is total indebtedness divided by the equity attributable
to owners of the Company. The Group's policy is to
maintain the gearing ratio between 10% and 50%.
Total indebtedness includes interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings and a loan from a fellow subsidiary.
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting

periods were as follows:

5. BERBEREEEREE (&)

EXRERE (&)

AN BN A E ARG E L 3R B
BAR - BAAEBELELSBEBKR
ARG HEEARGERZD - NEEH
CHEREBEREBEL XEFRN
10%%E50% ° 4 E % B & 5 B ;|_1T
EEMERREARWE QRN Z
BER - RBEPRZEREEFLL
ER

Group
AEE
2011 2010
=E——-F —ZT-TF
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FET FAET
Interest-bearing bank and FFRRITR
other borrowings H 4th {5 3K 88,934 110,547
Mortgage loan advanced from [B X i & 2 7 £+
a fellow subsidiary ZIEBER = 57,252
Total indebtedness BIETE 88,934 167,799
Equity attributable to owners ZNA AI#EA A
of the Company FEAE #E 2% 1,343,116 1,153,199
Gearing ratio EAREEEL X 7% 15%
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36.

37.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial
statements, due to the adoption of new and revised
HKFRSs during the current year, the presentation
of certain items and balances in the financial
statements have been revised to comply with the
new requirements. Accordingly, certain comparative
amounts have been reclassified and restated to
conform with the current year's presentation, and a
third statement of financial position as at 1 April 2009

has been presented.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 24 June 2011.

FHLEBEEARLE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36.

37.

EEEE R EE

[ g

AN A B 75 e 2R B RE2. 280 FF L - RS
RNEFZRAFHHFTMEIEFTEFL
B 7% # &5 2RI - P LA R B 18 FRaR
HTIHB RESRNIIFRETT TESR
m AR E - FIt - &7 #EA

FEMIIBERRF - HETLHER
BFEEHLBEMES XK

W _TETNFHA-BNE=MOH
BARRE -

MB|ER M
MEBREEN_FT——F XA
S AEE R e R
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FHLEBEEARQS

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFRBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five

financial years, as extracted from the published audited

AEEBSERAEFRFEMEED
TN R EZMHFRROLERE
EE RABEMIFZERBRREDZNR

financial statements is set out below. BN o
RESULTS E
Year ended 31 March
BE=RA=t-BL%FE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E——F —ZT-FF —FTTNF —ZTE)N\F —ZTETLHF
HK$' 000 HK$'000  HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FTHET FHET FHET FET FHET
REVENUE 'ON 172,177 329,440 219,148 303,482 247,329
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ZARXAREE A
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS EhEEEE
OF THE COMPANY wmH(BB) 202,625 191,613 (69,704) 176,198 124,773
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE BERIFERRRERS
INTERESTS
At 31 March
R=ZB=+-—8
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E—-—F —ZT-TF —TTNF —ZTEN\F —_TTLF
HK$' 000 HK$'000  HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FTHT FAET FHET FAT FAET
TOTAL ASSETS EEARE 1,699,292 1,657,428 1,443,078 1,643,426 1,332,174
TOTAL LIABILITIES BELAE (375,810) (514,195) (458,287) (548,483) (591,727)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS  J % % Bk SR 3% 19,634 9,966 (2,172)  (22,163) 771
1,343,116 1,153,199 982,619 1,072,780 741218
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Description

85

Shop No. 23A,

Ground Floor (Level 2),
Kwai Chung Plaza,

7-11 Kwai Foo Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories,

Hong Kong

BB RZREERT- IR
SORESHT (B = F) 23A%: 8

Unit Nos. 3810 and 3811,

38th Floor, West Tower,

Shun Tak Centre,

168-200 Connaught Road Central,

Hong Kong

EHE TFEEF 168-2009%
L AE3sE
3810%381 158 &7

Ground Floor including its cockloft,
Chi Fu Building,
No. 301 Portland Street,

Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

EENEHE AMEE30195%
EEEHT (BEEHEE)

Use

Az

Commercial

[HES

Commercial

GES

Commercial

HES

FHLEBEEARLS

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
MEFE

31 March 2011

—E——fF=A=+—H

REWME

Percentage

Nature of interest

X EZEDL

Medium-term leasehold 100
FHEIFEE

Medium-term leasehold 100
FRHEIRE

Medium-term leasehold 100
FHEIFEE
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FHLEBEEARQS

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
MEFIS

31 March 2011

—2——fF=A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Description Use
B AR
Shop 5, Ground Floor, Commercial
Dundas Square, e
No. 43H Dundas Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BBNERABZIT T H43HE
BT T E S T 555 5

Shop 3, Ground Floor, Commercial
Dundas Square, [
No. 43H Dundas Street,

Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

EAENER AT TH43HR

BT T E S T 355 6

Annual Report 2011 3§
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Nature

2N

Medium-term leasehold

FHIEE

Medium-term leasehold

FHHEE

Percentage

of interest

EZEI

100

100
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